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StockerYale is an independent, leading designer and
manufacturer of optical sub-components used in the
building of fiber optic networks, as well as a world leader
in the production of advanced illumination products for
the electronic assembly, machine vision, military and
medical markets. StockerYale serves a widely varied,

international customer base and reinvests a significant

percentage of revenues in R&D to meet the future

requirements of its customers. Headquartered in Salem,
New Hampshire, the company has offices and subsidiaries

in the U.S., Canada, Europe, and the Pacific Rim.




To our SHAREHOLDERS

Last year was a challenging year for our com-
pany, the economy and the world in which
we live. However, [ believe that great compa-
nies are built in times of maximum disrup-
tion and I am proud of how the StockerYale
team met the challenges of 2001.

As a result of the depressed semiconductor
and electronic assembly industries, our overall
sales were down from the previous year. The
downturn in these industries directly affected
our illumination business, which recognized a
21% reduction in sales. However, our optical
components business actually realized an
increase in sales over fiscal 2000 — quite
remarkable considering the state of the
telecommunications industry.

I am also pleased to report that we have
completed our infrastructure buildout in
support of our move into the specialty optical
fiber and optical components markets. Last
year we invested $19 million in state-of-the-
art manufacturing and R&D facilities. These
were largely one-time capital expenditures
and we expect these capital programs to be
significantly lower moving forward. As we
enter 2002, our resources are fully in place,
and our goal to achieve leadership in the spe-
cialty optical fiber and optical components
markets is very much on track.

A highlight of the year was the opening of
our new 15,000 square-foot R&D facility,
which is adjacent to our 80,000 square-foot
plant and corporate offices in Salem, New
Hampshire. This state-of-the-art facility is
the home of iSOFC, a majority-owned
subsidiary thar is developing a new class of
low-cost, fiber-based optical components
and next-generation specialty optical fibers.
During the year we also modernized, and
moved into a new 65,000 square-foor office,

production, and R&D facility in Montreal,
Canada that will focus on the further devel-
opment of our award winning Lasiris™
phase masks, diffraction gratings, tunable
optical filter (TOF), laser technologies, and
other cutting-edge optical sub-component
and advanced illumination technologies
and products.

With the infrastructure buildout behind us
and the necessary resources firmly in place,
the company has begun to reap the rewards
of its investments. We've started shipping
several specialty optical fibers, including what
we believe to be the industry’s most advanced
cladding mode suppression (CMS) fiber,
which is used in the manufacture of fiber
Bragg gratings (FBGs). We received our first
R&D contract to develop a custom specialty
optical fiber from one of the top three opti-
cal system developers in the world. In
October we demonstrated the first high-
performance tunable optical filcer (TOF)

at the European Conference on Optical
Communication (ECOC) and most recently
announced the availability of polarization
maintaining (PM) fiber, which is used prima-
rily in gyroscope, sensor, and specialized
telecommunication applications.

Many new illumination products were also
introduced in 2001 including: CE-compliant
products that expand our opportunities in
European markets; polymer clad fused silica
(quartz) fiber used in applications where
optimal UV output is critical — one of the
target markets being the medical indusery;
and a custom designed laser that has been
integrated into an OEM system whose
primary function is to screen biological
agents, including anthrax. These systems
are currently being field-tested.




We continue to be vigilant and proactive
financially. Under difficult market conditions,
the company completed a $16 million equity
private placement with U.S. institutional
investors through William Blair & Company
and established a new $6 million revolving
credit line with Merrill Lynch Financial
Services. In September we initiated a cost
savings program that eliminated non-essential
projects and consolidated several operations,
from which we expect to save approximately
$2 million annually. Also in September, we
sold our last legacy business, Stilson Die-
Draulics machine tool division for $1.1
million. This action completed our strategic
objective of realigning our resources to focus
on two core businesses — optical compo-
nents and specialized illumination products.
And, in February 2002 we completed another
private placement totaling $9.7 million,
which will be used towards the further
development and realization of our corpo-
rate initiatives.

Recognizing the challenges of growing a

technology company, we hired Francis ]. —
O’Brien in October as executive vice presi- <_/
dent and chief financial officer. Mr. O’Brien

most recently served as director of finance
& business development for Analogic
Corporation. He brings to StockerYale a
unique combination of perspectives: the
disciplined financial processes found in
larger companies and the entrepreneurial
spirit common to smaller technology firms.

While 2001 was StockerYale’s fiftieth
anniversary, I think of us as a young, highly
energized company. Over the last two years
we have reinvented ourselves as a technology-
driven organization focused on developing
niche markets, with intellectual capital and
innovative product strategies that are second
to none. I am confident that in 2002 we
will continue to make significant progress
towards our goal of becoming an industry
leader in specialty optical fibers and optical
sub-components as well as building
increased market share in the specialized
illumination field.

Sincerely,

-

Mark W. Blodgett
Chairman & CEO

iSOFC ribbon
cutting

g

March 26, 2002



A LANDMARK YEAR

SPECIALTY OPTICAL FIBER
GLOBAL MARKET FORECAST

(Projected) Annual $ in millions

Source: ElectroniCast Corporation
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Nearly two years ago, StockerYale embarked on its
most challenging strategic initiative since its founding
in 1951. The goal was clear and well defined — to
position the company as a leader in specialty optical
fiber, optical sub-components, and advanced optical
technologies.

In 2001, the company successfully met these initiatives
and challenges on many fronts. We built and opened
new state-of-the-art facilities, significantly increased our
intellectual capital in the optical fiber and components
field, filed patent applications, and launched new prod-
ucts that have attracted attention throughout the
markets we serve.

Now, with its infrastructure solidly in place, StockerYale
is prepared to take on the future. The company is
focused on the execution of its business plan, turning
its full attention and resources towards the development
of value-added, innovative oprical technologies that will
position the company as a formidable competitor in the
telecommunications, gyroscope, and sensor markets.

GROWING OPPORTUNITIES

While growth projections for the optical components
market were downgraded in 2001, analysts continue
to predict a dynamic, solidly growing market over the
long term.

"One of the key advantages that StockerYale
possesses is its ability to focus a portion
of its R&D resources on custom specialty
optical fiber applications, differentiating
us from our competitors.”

Alain Beauregard, President & Chief Technology Officer



This growth will be fueled by strong demand for the
all-optical systems that expand the bandwidth available
for communications, while dramatically lowering both
network design and integration costs. RHK, a leading
industry market research and consulting firm specializ-
ing in the analysis of advanced technologies for the
global public telecommunications network, predicts
that the global optical components market will grow
from $4.2 billion in 2002 to $8 billion in 2005 —

a 91% increase over three years.

More germane to our markets, a recent study from
ElectroniCast Corporation predicts that the worldwide
use of selected specialty optical fiber in communication
products will grow from $239 million in 2000 to
$1.1 billion by 2005.

As we explained in our 2000 Annual Report, specialty
optical fibers are a core technology used in building
these optical components. It is a technology that the
long-haul fiber manufacturers have not aggressively
pursued — but it is a technology that StockerYale is
now positioned to play a leadership role in.

Moreover, various specialty optical fibers being devel-
oped by the company support niche technologies and
applications outside of the telecommunications indus-
try, broadening the company’s target markets. Today,
we are aggressively pursuing these opportunities.

StockerYale’s specialty optical fiber development efforts
fall into four broad categories: rare-earth doped fibers,
polarization maintaining fibers, photosensitive fibers,
and custom designed fibers. These specialty fibers
support a diverse range of applications, including
erbium-doped fiber amplifiers (EDFAs), dense wave-
length-division mukiplexing (DWDM) fiber Bragg
gratings (FBGs), high-voltage current sensors, gyro-
scopes, and high-data-rate communications systems.

WORLD CLASS R&tD AND
MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Powering our drive to leadership in the oprical
components markets are facilities and intellectual
resources that clearly position us as a key competitor
in the industry.

The new iSOFC facility, completed in 2001, is adja-

cent to StockerYale’s existing 80,000 square-foot plant
_and corporate offices. Operating as a majority-owned

subsidiary, the iSOFC plant boasts state-of-the-art

"While most specialty optical fiber manufacturers focus

on the traditional types of specialty optical fibers, iSOFC
researchers are focusing on specialty optical fibers that will
deliver unprecedented photonic functionality, bringing us
and hence the telecom industry, to new levels from both
a cost and performance perspective.”

Dr. Danny Wong, President & CEO, iSOFC

modified chemical vapor deposition (MCVD) systems
thar allow StockerYale to produce best-in-class fiber.

Furthermore, iSOFC is headed by one of the industry’s
most respected experts, Dr. Danny Wong, who is a
world-renowned physicist and researcher in the field
of specialty optical fiber, MCVD systems, and other
optical technologies. As president of iSOFC, Dr. Wong
is overseeing the development of innovative, specialty
optical fiber components.

Through iSOFC, StockerYale aims to ultimately reduce
costs for optical equipment and optical component
manufacturers and to improve the performance of the
all-optical network through increased functionality
engineered into the fiber.

A DIVERSIFIED STRATEGY
iSOFC is only one part of the company’s diversified
strategy in optical technology.

At StockerYale Canada, where the industry’s leading

phase mask products are developed under the well-
known Lasiris™ brand name, the company completed
the renovation of its new facilities last summer. This
effort included the addition of a state-of-the-art, class
100 clean room, which will enable us to maintain our
competitive advantage. Phase masks are used in the
manufacture of fiber Brage gratings which are a key
enabling technology in wavelength division multiplex-
ing (WDM) and dispersion compensation applica-
tions, both essential elements for building increased
efficiencies within the fiber optic network.

And under the direction of Dr. Nicolae Miron, Optune
Technologies, a StockerYale subsidiary, is fully ramped
up to develop next-generation technology for a tunable
oprtical filter thar will fill a critical role in the all-optical
network.

As StockerYale CEO Mark Blodgett stated: “Wich the
completion of our new iISOFC R&D and manufactur-
ing facility, in addition to other optical related initia-
tives and developments, StockerYale has the capacity to
design and produce best-in-class optical fiber as well as
custom designed optical components thart serve a range
of customers. We are clearly positioned to be a princi-
pal player in the optical sub-components marker.”




DELIVERING ON

the promise

The measurement of any R&D investment is
quantifiable results. By that measure, 2001 was a
notable year in specialty optical fibers and advanced
optical components. Across its targeted markets and
company initiatives, StockerYale delivered important
product advancements that have laid che foundation
towards its ultimate goal of industry leadership in
select optical markets.

UNVEILING TUNABLE OPTICAL FILTERS

In last year’s annual report, we stated our goal of
developing tunable optical filters (TOFs), which will
be used for wavelength management throughout the
all-optical networks of the future.

This technology, in conjunction with the all-optical
switch, has been referred to as the “holy grail” of the
all-optical network. According to Communications
Industry Researchers, an independent research organi-
zation: “The U.S. market for tunable optical technolo-
gies will surpass $1.3 billion by 2005, driven by the
needs of service providers and equipment manufacturers
to reduce the costs associated with building, operating
and maintaining networks. Tunable filters will have

a market potential of almost half a billion dollars in
2005 as the result of several applications.” In October,
the company delivered on its promise by demonstrating
the industry’s first high performance TOF at the
European Conference on Optical Communication
(ECOCQC) in Amsterdam.

This TOF marks several advances in technology based
upon a proprietary multiple beam interferometer
(without resonant cavity) that delivers a constant and
small insertion loss and constant bandwidth within the
entire tuning range, can switch from one wavelength
to another at much faster speeds, and is tunable over
a wider range. StockerYale’s TOFs can be tuned across

“Optical communications is clearly moving toward tunability,
specifically in the area of fasers, receivers and routers. Qur
unprecedented advances in optical tuning are so innovative
that our technological breakthroughs will be used as a refer-
ence point in the field of optical tuning for years to come.”

Dr. Nicolae Miron, President, Optune Technologies Inc.

% Optical Components Cont'd

the entire C and L band in several hundred microsec-
onds. Furthermore, this technology is so cutting-edge
that patent applications wete filed with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office.

StockerYale’s TOFs represent the next generation of
critical optical components. We expect them to play
an important role in building the reconfigurable,
all-optical networks of the future that will deliver
increased communication bandwidth and improved

quality of service (QoS).

BEST-IM-CLASS CLADDING
MODE SUPPRESSION FIBER

One of StockerYale's major goals is to develop a new
generation of specialty optical fibers that will not only
improve the performance of the all-optical network
but will ultimately expand the bandwidth available for
communications, while dramatically lowering both
network design and integration costs. The company
took important steps in that direction in December
2001 by introducing what is believed to be the indus-
try’s most advanced Cladding Mode Suppression
(CMY) fiber.

Used in the manufacture of fiber Bragg gratings (FBGs),
this specially engineered fiber provides virtually total
suppression of cladding modes making it ideal for
broad-spectrum bandwidth dense wavelength division
multiplexer (DWDM) applications and gain flattening
filters. StockerYale’s CMS fiber breaks new ground by
allowing the FBG to be written into the core and the
cladding, eliminating loss peaks in the transmission
spectrum at wavelengths below the main reflection peak.

In essence, more functionality is built into the fiber
itself, which improves performance and lowers costs
for service providers and their custorners. This best-
in-class CMS fiber was a joint effort of StockerYale’s
technology team, including Dr. Danny Wong of
iSOFC, Dr. Francois Quellette of StockerYale
Canada, and other respected specialists within the
R&D organization.




"With our new line of diffraction gratings for the telecommuni-
cations industry, we are now able to pursue significant new
market opportunities that were not available to us before."

Paud jortberg, Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing, Optical Components

DIFFRACTION GRATINGS FOR
KEY TELECOM APPLICATIONS

Our product momentum continued into the new year
when in January, we introduced a new line of diffraction
gratings that deliver optimized performance for telecom-
munication devices such as optical spectrum analyzers,
multiplexers, demultiplexers, and tunable lasers.

StockerYale uses a proprietary holographic recording
method to produce these new diffraction gratings,
resulting in several key advantages over competing
technologies. A major benefit is that large diffraction
gratings, up to several inches long, can now be manu-
factured as quickly and easily as smaller gratings only
millimecers in length. The holographic recording
method is also perfectly suited for the simultaneous,
rapid fabrication of many small gratings.

StockerYale believes that its cutting-edge diffraction
gratings will open up new and exciting market oppor-
tunities and samples have already been delivered to
prospective customers.

FURTHER ADVANCES IN
SPECIALTY OPTICAL FIBER

Most recently, the company reported that it has begun
shipping samples of polarization maintaining (PM)
fiber, which is used primarily in gyroscope, sensor,
and specialized telecommunication applications.
StockerYales polarization maintaining (PM) fiber has

a high birefringence (hi-bi) to better maintain polariza-
tion, and low attenuation to provide greater flexibility
in system designs requiring long coil lengths. The intro-
duction of this specialty optical fiber broadens the
company’s market opportunities outside of the telecom-
munications industry.

REAPING THE REWARDS

It has been an extraordinary two years for StockerYale.
We have not only reshaped our infrastructure, but
have repositioned ourselves to focus on the exciting
growth opportunities that exist in specialty optical fiber
and advanced optical technologies. 2001 saw the first
rewards of thar effort, as we introduced many new
products and received our first contract to develop

a custom specialty optical fiber from one of the top
three optical equipment suppliers in the world.

Whether measured by our significant growth in intellec-
tual capital, infrastructure advancements, or how we
delivered on our promise of new and innovative prod-
ucts, 2001 was indeed a landmark year for StockerYale.
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GROWING AND DIVERSIFYING

% Hlumination products

“Through superior engineering, StockerYale's Lasiris
brand lasers dominate the 3-D machine vision
laser lighting market. By focusing our efforts on
custom and innovative designs, the company
expects to capture increased market share in the
medical and military markets with its lasers, fluo-
rescent, fioer optic, and LED lighting technologies.”

Luc Many, Senior Vice President of Sales & Marketing,

Hlumination Products

our base

Industry-leading illumination products have long been
a foundation for StockerYale’s success. Tradicionally,

these products have been targeted at the machine vision
and inspection market in high-precision industries such
as semiconductors, disk drives, and electronic assembly.

According to the Automated Imaging Association, this
market is projected to grow in the coming years, reach-
ing $8 billion by 2005. However, to ensure our contin-
ued success in illumination, the company is following
a strategy of diversification by pursuing niche markets,
unique opportunities, and strategic partnerships.

While machine vision remains a primary market for
StockerYale’s specialized illumination products, the
company is also focusing on developing products for
the medical and military markets where it has met
with some success.

The company will continue to focus more on custom
developed products, filling a need for customers who
don’t want, or can’t use, off-the-shelf products. This
strategy leverages our expertise and sets us apart from
the competition.

EXPANDING INTERNATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
In 2001, StockerYale launched an important initiative
to advance select illumination products to meet CE
certification, a European standard. Moreover, any new
illumination products currently under development will
be engineered to carry the CE mark as it is expected
that this initiative will increase the company’s penetra-
tion into the European market, providing a boost to

its sales efforts.

In addition, the company continued to develop

the Asian and Pacific Rim markets, primarily in the
microscopy and machine vision areas. StockerYale
Asia has already established a foothold in this region
and will continue to look for ways to strengthen our
sales and discribution capabilicies.




PRODUCT INNOVATIONS IN
FOUR KEY TECHNOLOGIES

StockerYale continues to be the only company wich
design and manufacturing competencies in all four
disciplines of specialized illumination: fiber optic, flu-
orescent, structured light laser, and LED technologies.
And, despite difficult market conditions during most
of 2001, we expanded our lead in each of these cate-
gories with new product innovations. Here are a few

of the product highlights from the past year.

Fiber optics

StockerYale introduced a new line of apertured linear
backlights designed for line-scan vision applications,
such as through-hole inspection, edge detection, and
any application that requires high contrast silhouettes
or uniform backlighting. These products offer intensi-
fied yet cool light for inspection and machine vision
applications where concentrated light is needed.

We also introduced a CE version of our popular
Model 20 quartz halogen fiber optic illuminator for
applications such as assembly, inspection, microscopy,
and industrial and machine vision in addition to our
WebLite family of fiber optic line arrays that boasts a
sealed housing and lens hood in lengths up to 112
inches (2.8 m) — an industry first.

Fluorescent

A key product introduction, well received by
customers, was our new line of sealed fluorescent
linear lighting fixcures. Manufactured to NEMA 12
specifications, the sealed linears are designed for the
inspection and machine vision markets, specifically
targeted at the steel, food processing, pulp and paper,
and pharmaceutical industries.

We also introduced CE-compliant versions of our
Model 10 Circular Fluorescent Vision Illuminator
(CFVI) for assembly, microscopy, industrial, and

machine vision applications.

Structured light lasers

One of our premier laser illumination products, the
Lasiris™ Microfocus Laser series, was selected Product of
the Month in the February 2001 Photonic Tech Briefs
for its ourstanding technical merit and pracrical value to
the magazine’s engineering and scientific readers.

We introduced Lasiris™ TEC Lasers (thermoelectrically
cooled diode lasers) with long lifetimes and excellent
wavelength, power and pointing stability. These
products maintain a constant laser diode tempera-
ture, allowing them to be used in applications that
demand high consistency such as bio-medical

‘01 ‘02 '03

MACHINE VISION MARKET
(Projected) Annual $ in billions

Source: Automated Imaging Association

applications, machine vision, 3D contour mapping,
alignment positioning, industrial inspection, R&D,
and microscopy.

Our new Lasiris™ HPTL laser is a high-power
fiber-coupled diode laser capable of projecting a
dot or a line. It is designed for the most demanding
industrial applications, such as medical therapeutics,
thermal printing, laser pumping, machine vision,
and process control.

Additionally, the company has developed a custom
designed laser that has been integrated into an OEM
system whose primary function is to screen biological
agents, including anthrax. This unit is currently

being field-tested.

LED

In August, StockerYale unveiled a new White LED
Ringlighc Illumination System. This white light-
emitting diode (LED) ringlight system is ideal for
microscopy and image analysis applications, provid-
ing brilliant, white light with excellent uniformiry.

StockerYale Treland, formerly known as CorkOpt,
Ltd., has given StockerYale the lead in miniaturized,
super-compact LED solutions. While this is an
important niche market, we plan to expand product
offerings in the future to address more customer
needs and increase our market penetration.

A STRATEGY FOR THE FUTURE

StockerYale is a recognized world leader in special-
ized illumination products for the machine vision
and industrial inspection industries. To maintain
that position, we are diversifying our business by
continuing our strong R&D commitment to the
further development of innovative and custom-
designed products that will open up new markets
within these industries.

We also believe that our strategy of expanding our
customer base and seizing new opportunities in the
medical and military markets will help insulate us
from downturns in the cyclical semiconductor and
clectronic assembly industries. This strategy will
better position us for success in challenging as well
as in good economic times.
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FINANCIAL
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Fiscal 2001 Quarterly Analysis 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Annual
Net Sales $ 4925 $ 3,602 $ 3,663 $ 3,391 $ 15,581
Gross Profit $ 2,224 $ 1,247 $ 9N $ (154) $ 4,278
Operating Expenses
Research and Development $ 8N § 1,139 $ 1,293 $ 2422 $ 5465
Selling Expenses $ 764 $ 1,004 $ 1178 $ 1,520 $ 4,466
General and Administrative $ 1,336 $ 2,534 $ 2226 $ 1,729 $ 7.825
Goodwill and Intangible $ N $ 169 $ 7 $ 167 $ 678
Asset Amortization

$ 2,882 $ 4,846 $ 4,868 $ 5,838 $ 18,434
Operating Loss $ {658) $ (3,599) $ (3.897) $(6,002)  $(14,158)
Operating Cash Flow $ (1,452) $ (4,328) $ (925) $(2,999) $ (9,704)
Capital Expenditures $ 1641 $ 5,098 $ 65618 $ 5,555 $ 18,812
Headcount 220 255 255 255 255

10
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Consolidated Statement of Operations 2001 2000 1999
Net Sales $ 15,581 $18,366 $11,483
Gross Profit $ 4278 $ 6906 $ 4.463
Operating Expenses
Research and Development $ 5465 $ 1,333 $ 788
In Process Research and Development — $ 402 —
Selling Expenses $ 4466 $ 2152 $ 1,620
General and Administrative $ 7825 $§ 3615 $ 2181
Goodwill and Intangible Asset Amartization $ 678 $ 604 $ 483

$ 18434 $ 8,106 $ 5,072

Operating Loss from Continuing Operations $(14,156) $(1.200) $ (609)
Net Loss $(13.862) $(3.395) ${1,058)
Net Loss per Share — Basic and Diluted (1.30) (.39) (.14)

{doliars in thousands except per share)

Consolidated Balance Sheets 200 2000 1999
Assets
Cash $ 3576 $12987 $§ 85
Accounts Receivable $ 2,091 $ 267 $ 1991
Inventory $ 57224 $ 5196 $ 4934
Property, Plant and Equipment $ 25813 § 8261 $ 3,085
Goodwill and Intangible Assets $ 4792 § 5498 $ 3,986
Other Assets $ 1864 $ 2368 $ 2,598
$ 43,360 $36,981 $16,679

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts Payable $ 3,79 $ 1636 $ 2892
Accrued Expenses $ 1,438 $ 1,332 $ 890
Debt and Capital Leases $ 6,767 $ 4,107 $ 7,432
Other Liabilities $ 1339 $ 2007 $ 1,7
Stockholder's Investment $ 58320  $42,080  $14,429
Accumulated Loss $ (28,295) $(14,181) $(10,675)

$43,360 $36,981 $ 16,679

(dollars in thousands)

*Subsequent to year-end 2001, the company raised approximately
$9.7 million through the private placement of common stock.
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by reference into Items, 10, 11 and 12 of Part III.
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PART I

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.You can identify forward-looking statements
by the use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “assume,” and other similar
expression which predict or indicate future events and trends and which do not relate to historical matters.
The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from our expectations
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements sometimes for reasons that are beyond the
Company’s control. Such reasons include, without limitation: the existence of other independent suppliers of
optical fiber, who may have greater resources than the Company; the risk that the Company’s products may
infringe patents held by other parties; the uncertainty that the Company’s significant investments in R&D will
result in products that achieve market acceptance; the Company’s ability to attract and maintain key
personnel; whether the Company is able to design products to meet the special needs of its customers; and
that market conditions could make it more difficult or expensive for the Company to obtain the necessary
capital to finance its expansion efforts and joint ventures. Additional factors that might cause such a
difference are discussed in the section entitled “Certain Factors Affecting Future Operating Results”
beginning on page 25 of this Form 10-K.

ERINTS

ITEM 1 - BUSINESS
Background

StockerYale is an independent designer and manufacturer of optical communication sub-components and
specialty optical fiber used in the building of optical networks, as well as structured light lasers, specialized
fiber optic, fluorescent, and LED illumination products for the machine vision and industrial inspection
industries.

(a) Developments During Fiscal 2001

In 2001, StockerYale focused its activities on its two core businesses, Illumination and Optical Components,
while divesting itself of the last of its legacy businesses. StockerYale continued to develop its previously
announced initiative to enter the Optical Components marketplace by offering specialty optical fibers, in
addition to its existing phase mask products. Key developments during the year centered on hiring scientists
and marketing personnel that would enable the Company to design, manufacture and sell new and innovative
products to OEM customers in the telecommunication industry.




A summary of the major developments during 2001 include:

As part of the Company’s intent to focus only on photonics-based businesses, the Company announced in
March that it had signed a letter of intent to sell its Stilson machine tool and accessories division for a total
consideration of $1.1 million. The Company completed the sale of the Stilson business in September 2001.
Simultanecusly, the Company announced it would discontinue its printer and recorder product line.

During the first half of 2001, the Company renovated its Canadian facility, purchased in December 2000. The
renovation included the construction and installation of new manufacturing and test equipment, design and
construction of a class 100-research and development clean room and improvements to existing office and
conference room facilities.

On June 4, 2001, StockerYale completed an equity private placement of 1.7 million shares of common stock
at a price of $10.25 per share with net proceeds totaling approximately $16 million. These proceeds were used
for general corporate purposes, including funding operating losses, working capital and the installation of
machinery in both its Salem and Montreal operations and the construction of an addition to its corporate
headquarters in Salem, New Hampshire.

In June 2001, StockerYale announced that it had completed Phase I of its entry into the specialty optical fiber
business when it installed state-of-the-art modified chemical vapor deposition (MCVD) equipment in the
corporate headquarters facility in Salem, New Hampshire. These machines, commonly referred to as lathes,
are used to manufacture optical preforms, which are then converted to specialty optical fiber through the use
of a fiber draw tower.

The Company began Phase II in May 2001, with the construction of a 15,000 sq. ft. addition to its corporate
headquarters designed to house additional MCVD equipment, two high speed draw towers and iSOFC, a
majority-owned subsidiary formed to do research and development on second-generation optical fibers and
all-fiber components. The facility was completed in September 2001,

During the second quarter of 2001, StockerYale’s Illumination product line announced the availability of
three new specialized illumination products: sealed fluorescent linear lighting fixtures, white light-emitting
dicde (LED) modules, and the Lasiris™ mini laser.

In July 2001, the Company announced the appointment of Ellen Landis as national sales manager for Optical
Components. Landis joined StockerYale from 3M’s Optical Communication Sub-Components organization
where she held the position of national sales manager and was a key contributor to 3M’s specialty fiber
success.

In October 2001, StockerYale, Inc. demonstrated its new class of tunable optical filters (TOFs), designed by
Optune Technologies, a 49% owned joint venture of StockerYale, at ECOC in Amsterdam. This innovative
TOF is based on a proprietary multiple beam interferometer without resonant cavity, and several patent
applications have been filed with the United States Patent and Trademark Office.




In November 2001, the Company announced the appointment of Francis J. O’Brien as Chief Financial
Cfficer. Mr. O’Brien was previously the Director of Finance and Business Development for Analogic
Corporation.

(b) Company History

StockerYale, Inc., (the “Company”) was incorporated on March 27, 1951 under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. In May 1994, the Company became publicly traded on the Vancouver
Stock Exchange (the “VSE”) via a merger with Brower Exploration, Inc., a Wyoming corporation that was
publicly traded in Canada. The Company’s common stock (the “Common Stock™) was listed and traded on
the Vancouver Stock Exchange from May 14, 1994 until May 10, 1996, when the Company de-listed its stock
from the VSE. In December 1995, the Company completed the registration of its Common Stock with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, and in January 1996, the Company listed its stock on the Nasdaq
SmallCap Market under the trading symbol “STKR”. In June 1999, the Company was de-listed from the
Nasdaq SmallCap Market and began trading on the OTC-Bulletin Board under the same trading symbeol
“STKR”. Cn May 11, 2000, the Company’s application to list its Common Stock on the Nasdaq National
Market was approved and trading began under the same trading symbol “STKR” on May 16, 2000.

Cn May 13, 1998, the Company acquired StockerYale Canada, Inc., formerly known as Lasiris, Inc.,
a Canadian manufacturer of industrial lasers and other illumination and photonics products. The acquisition of
StockerYale Canada provided the Company with the capability to manufacture laser-based illumination
products and phase masks, which are used to manufacture fiber Bragg gratings for telecommunication
applications.

The Company acquired StockerYale Canada through Lasiris Holdings, Inc., 2 newly formed New
Brunswick corporation (“LHI”) and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. StockerYale Canada is
operated as a wholly owned Canadian subsidiary of LHI. In connection with this transaction, the former
stockholders of StockerYale Canada received shares of capital stock in LHI, which are exchangeable into
shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis at any time at the option of the holder.

In addition to Lasiris Holdings, Inc., the Company has two active subsidiaries. On June 16, 2000, the
Company acquired StockerYale (IRL) Ltd., formerly known as CorkOpt Ltd, which is a wholly owned Irish
subsidiary and StockerYale Asia PTE Ltd., formerly known as Radiant Asiatec Pte, Ltd., a Singapore
corporation that was formed in December 1997, is an 80% owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition
of StockerYale (IRL) Ltd. provided the Company with the capability to manufacture and sell light-emitting
diodes, or LEDs, for industrial applications. StockerYale Asia PTE Ltd. is the entity through which the
Company sells its [llumination products in Southeast Asia.

As of February 28, 2002, the authorized capital stock of the Company was 100,000,000 shares of
Common Stock of which 11,736,436 shares were issued and outstanding. Additionally, 2,308,981 shares of
Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options or warrants to purchase
Common Stock and upon the exchange of 656,365 shares of Lasiris Holdings, which are exchangeable into
Company Common Stock on a one-for-one basis.




(¢) Financial Information About Industry Segments

The Company operated within a single segment of the electronics industry (Illumination Instruments)
in 2001.

Beginning in 2002, the Company will design and manufacture products within two industry
segments, namely illumination and optical components. [llumination preducts include structured light lasers,
specialized fiber optic, fluorescent, and light-emitting diode (LED) products for the machine vision and
industrial inspection industries. The optical components segment includes communication and sub-component
and specialty optical fiber for the telecommunications, industrial and medical markets.

IMMumination Products

StockerYale is a leading developer and manufacturer of specialized illumination products for the
inspection, machine vision, medical, and military markets and continues tc be the only company with design
and manufacturing competencies in four illumination disciplines: fiber optic, fluorescent, structured light
laser, and light emitting diocde (LED) technologies. The Company alsc differentiates itself from many of its
competitors by delivering custom designed lighting solutions that can operate as a stand-alone illumination
source or as an integral component of a larger OEM system.

The Company’s fiber optic illumination products provide shadow-free, glare-free, cool illumination
by way of a halogen light source (i.e. fiber optic illuminator) and the components (i.e. fiber optic light guide)
that carry the illumination output to the intended location. StockerYale manufactures high output, 0.66
numerical aperture (N.A.) glass fiber, in addition to polymer clad fused silica (quartz) fiber that is used in its
fiber optic components, providing customers with the lighting solution that best fits their application.
StockerYale’s technologically advanced fiber is produced in its state-of-the-art fiber drawing facility,
ensuring that the purest of light demanded by increasingly sophisticated imaging systems and advanced
quality assurance processes is delivered.

StockerYale has over twenty years experience designing and manufacturing high-quality fluorescent
illumination products that are primarily used in microscopy and machine vision applications. The Company’s
fluorescent illuminators provide the critical lighting needs for a diversity of microscopes and cameras that are
widely used for inspection in the semiconductor and disk drive manufacturing industries. StockerYale has the
most comprehensive line of fluorescent products available and believes that its Model 9 circular fluorescent
microscope illuminator (CFMI) is the world’s leading microscope illuminator. The Company alsc custom
designs fluorescent illumination systems to meet a customers exact lighting requirements.

For customers locking for a more energy efficient, long lasting illumination source, StockerYale
offers LED lighting systems. The Company’s patented, state-of-the-art, chip-on-board LED units draw less
power, produce less heat, and are not subject to the influences of oxidation that other lighting technologies
endure, resulting in a life span of over 60,000 hours. Furthermore, because of the intrinsic characteristics of




LEDs, which can be engineered into virtually any geometric configuration, StockerYale’s LED’s are ideal for
specialized illumination applications within the semiconductor and electronics industries that require the
properties and benefits that only this lighting technology can deliver.

StockerYale’s Lasiris™ brand laser pattern projectors are used in the industrial inspection and 3-D
machine vision industries and have most recently been introduced into the medical and military industries for
specialized applications. The Company’s patented optical design produces a non-gaussian (evenly
illuminated) distinct laser line or a more complex laser light pattern that maintains a consistent intensity along
the length and height of the projection. StockerYale’s lasers are electrostatic discharge (ESD) protected;
feature interchangeable head patterns, and most meet Class II eye safety ratings. By applying nearly 50 years
of electro-optic R&D experience, the Company offers custom design laser pattern projectors that meet even
the most stringent requirements.

Lasers can be useful for contour mapping of parts, surface defect detection, depth measurements,
guidelines, edges detection, and alignment. For example, in machine vision applications, structured light
lasers may be used on robots as 3-D guiding systems to place or insert a part on a car, such as a windshield
wiper or a door. In industrial inspection applications, these products may draw attention to parts that do not
conform to specifications, such as defective parts.

Optical Components

StockerYale is an emerging, independent designer and manufacturer of specialty optical fiber, optical
sub-components, and advanced optical technologies that are primarily used by telecommunication equipment
manufacturers around the world.

As a result of the demand for products that can deliver high-speed data and voice transmission, the
Company is utilizing both its photonics (light-based) knowledge and manufacturing expertise to aggressively
move into the optical networking components, industrial and medical markets.

Today, the Company is a leading supplier of phase masks, a key enabling technology for the
production of fiber Bragg gratings (FBGs) used in dense wavelength-division multiplexing (DWDM) and
other filtering applications. The Company also designs and manufactures specialty optical fiber (SOF) along
with other advanced optical technologies that enable the optimization and proliferation of fiber optic
networks.

StockerYale designs and produces high-quality specialty optical fiber for both industry standard and
custom applications. StockerYale’s specialty optical fiber development efforts fall into four broad categories:
rare-earth doped fibers, polarization maintaining fibers, photosensitive fibers and custom design fibers. These
specialty optical fibers support a diverse range of applications, including erbium-doped fiber amplifiers,
(EDFAs), dense wavelength-division multiplexing, (DWDM), fiber Bragg gratings, (FBGs), high-voltage
current sensors, gyroscopes, and high-data-rate communications systems.




StockerYale has added Polarization Maintaining Fibers and Cladding Mode Suppression Fibers to its
product line. StockerYale’s Polarization Maintaining Fiber maintains a specific state of polarized light and is
designed for use in telecommunication, gyre and sensor applications.

StockerYale’s Cladding Mode Suppression Fiber is optimized for the writing of high quality Fiber
Bragg Gratings (FBGs). FBGs are used to preselect and filter signals in DWDM te increase network capacity
and performance. Simply stated, FBGs, through the use of a phase mask, are made by exposing the core of a
single-mode fiber to a periodic pattern of ultraviolet light, which permanently increases the refractive index of
the fiber’s core. FBGs are used for pump stabilizers, dispersion compensators, GFF and sensor applications.

The Company’s Lasiris™ brand phase masks are high-precision phase diffraction gratings with
suppressed zeroth orders and maximized first orders and are primarily used in the production of fiber Bragg
gratings (FBGs). FBGs offer a passive fiber-based means of filtering and stabilizing wavelengths to improve
the performance of optical components. The Company also has the technical expertise and R&D facilities to
optimize or custom design a phase mask that supports a special wavelength operation or tailor the mask
dimensions to satisfy a customer’s specific application.

StockerYale recently began designing and manufacturing a broad range of diffractive gratings. These
holographically recorded sinusoidal and binary diffraction gratings are key components in select
telecommunication devices such as optical spectrum analyzers, multiplexers, demultiplexers, and tunable
lasers. A diffraction grating is basically an array of fine, parallel, equally spaced grooves (or "rulings") on a
reflecting or transparent substrate. The grooves cause an interference phenomenon (diffraction), which allows
for the angular redirection of light depending on its wavelength. This optical phenomenon can be exploited to
perform demultiplexing, among other tasks. In demultiplexing, incoming multi-channel signals traveling on a
single fiber are separated (demultiplexed) into the constituent wavelength channels. Each individual
wavelength can then be launched into its own fiber or processed separately. The flexibility and repeatability
of the Company’s proprietary holographic recording method provides significant advantages over competing
technologies by allowing us to produce gratings with a wide range of areas, periods, modulation depths, duty
cycles and diffraction efficiencies.

Optical communications is clearly moving toward tunability, specifically in the areas of lasers,
receivers and routers. Cptune Technologies, a 49% owned joint venture, has developed a new class of tunable
optical filters (TOFs) that are designed to deliver unparalleled performance and reliability, optimizing the
optical network by working internally as a system. The Company’s TOF is a proprietary multiple beam
interferometer without a resonant cavity and is used primarily as a wavelength selection element.
StockerYale’s TOF delivers enhanced tunability and excellent channel isolation while minimizing signal drift.
StockerYale’s TOFs represent the next generation of critical optical components that will be required to build
re-configurable, all-optical networks of the future, delivering increased communication bandwidth and
improved quality of service (QoS).




Sales Data

Specialized illumination and optical sub-component products represent 69% and 23% respectively of
2001 revenues compared to 74% and 16%, respectively, in 2000. Printer/recorder product sales represented
8% and 10%, respectively, of revenues in 2001 and 2000.

Domestic and Foreign Revenue

Sales to unaffiliated customers in foreign countries represented 38% and 40% of net revenues in 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Marketing and Distribution

The Company’s products are sold to over 10,000 customers, primarily in North America, Europe and
the Pacific Rim. The Company sells directly to, and works with, a group of approximately 125 distributors
and machine vision integrators to sell its specialized illumination products. Optical components are sold
directly to OEM customers by the Company’s marketing and sales organization.

Competition and Competitive Position

The Company competes with a number of firms in the design and manufacture of its specialized
illumination, optical fiber and sub-component products. Some competitors have greater resources than the
Company, and as a result, may have competitive advantages in the research and development and sales and
distribution.

In the industrial fluorescent lighting market, the Company has two primary competitors. MicroLite
markets a product similar in appearance to the Company’s circular fluorescent microscope illuminator.
Techni-Quip Corp. offers industrial fluorescent lighting as part of its product line but as a whole, its lighting
product line is limited and represents a small percentage of that company’s total business.

The Company has five primary competitors in the fiber optic illumination market. The most
established segment of this market relates to illumination for microscopes. Within that market, Volpi
Manufacturing USA, Inc. and Dolan-Jenner Industries, Inc. compete directly with the Company’s products.
Both of these companies have been producing fiber optic products for more than thirty years and offer a fully
developed line of fiber optic illumination systems for microscopy applications. A third company, Cuda
Products, Inc., also supplies fiber optic lighting for microscopy; however, its primary market is medical. The
value-oriented segment of the microscopy market is dominated by Chiu Technical Corp, which offers an
inexpensive, “no-frills”, fiber optic lighting system. A newer segment in the fiber optic lighting market relates
to automated imaging and inspection equipment for machine vision. Fostec, Inc. is the leading provider of
fiber optic lighting for the machine vision industry.




The Company has developed the in-house capability to draw its own glass fiber in variable
dimensions to suit customer needs. Although some of the above-named competitors also have this capability,
the Company believes that its proprietary manufacturing techniques result in fiber that has increased
reliability. Since mid-1996, the Company has invested in developing its in-house design and research
capabilities, including the hiring of personnel trained in optical, chemical, mechanical and electrical
engineering and related disciplines, and the purchase of computers and laboratory equipment necessary to
support these personnel. Further, the Company has succeeded in designing and developing a complete line of
fiber optic lighting products for both the machine vision and microscopy markets.

Over the last eighteen months, the Company completed a program to expand its specialty optical fiber
capability to include specialty optical fibers (SOF) for the telecommunications industry. The Company made
substantial capital investments in plant and equipment in connection with its development of a complete line
of Specialty Optical Fibers (SOF). The Company’s major competitors in this area include OFS, formally
Lucent’s optical fiber solutions division, Corning, and 3M. With OFS (now owned by Furukawa), Corning
and 3M consuming the majority of their SOF products internally, the Company believes the industry is
locking for additional independent suppliers of SOF.

Backlog

The Company maintains an inventory of standard materials and components and generally
manufactures standard illumination product configurations within one to five days after receipt of a customer
order. The optical components and specialty optical products are generally manufactured to specifications of
the customer order with a one to two week turnaround between order and shipment. Although such rapid
response is, and historically has been, a selling advantage for the Company, some orders are placed for future
delivery. At December 31, 2001, the Company had a backlog of orders for future delivery of approximately
$2,858,000, compared to approximately $4,287,000 as of December 31, 2000.

Raw Materials

The raw materials and components used in the Company’s products are purchased from a number of
different suppliers and are generally available from several sources.

Dependence on One or & Few Major Customers
The Company’s customer base consists of more than 10,000 customers in various industries
worldwide. Sales to the Company’s largest single customer represented 10% of the Company’s total net sales

in fiscal 2001. The Company’s top ten customers represented approximately 32% of total net sales in fiscal
2001, 38% in 2000 and 18% in 1999,
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Patents and Trademarks

The Company holds patents in the United States and Ireland and, has filed additional patent
applications in the United States, Canada, Europe and Japan. StockerYale (IRL), Ltd holds a patent on a
method for attaching semiconductor chips and has applied for two patents in the United States, Canada and
Europe on new ring light and line light technologies. StockerYale Canada holds exclusive rights in three
patents in the United States and one patent in Canada through licensing agreements. A majority-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC, has applied for a patent in
the United States on a fiber optic technology for depolarizing light. A 49% owned joint venture of the
Company, Optune Technologies, Inc. has applied for two patents in the United States on a tunable optical
filter for optical communications.

The Company has four patents relating to fundamental technological devices and methodologies used
to achieve low-cost fluorescent light dimming; these patents expire on August 18, 2009, August 24, 2010,
September 6, 2011 and September 13, 2011. StockerYale Canada’s material patents consist of four patents for
lenses, which expire on May 2, 2006, November 27, 2007, June 4, 2013 and December 15, 2015. The
Company believes that patents are an effective way of protecting its competitive technological advantages,
and considers its patents to be a strong deterrent against unauthorized manufacture, use and sale of its
products and key product attributes. There can be no assurance, however, that a patent will be issued with
respect to the Company’s pending patent applications or whether the Company’s patents or license rights will
provide meaningful protection for the Company.

The Company also relies upon trade secret protection for its confidential and proprietary information.
There can be no assurance that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary
information and techniques, or otherwise gain access to and use or disclose the Company’s trade secrets or
that the Company can meaningfully protect its trade secrets.

The Company holds rights in certain trademarks to protect its brand name recognition in various
markets. Because of the Company’s long history and reputation for designing and manufacturing high quality
products, trademark protection enhances the Company’s position in the market.

Although the Company believes that its products and other proprietary rights do not infringe the
proprietary rights of third parties, there can be no guarantee that infringement claims will not be asserted
against the Company in the future or that any such claims will not require the Company to enter into royalty
arrangements or result in costly litigation.
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Research and Development

The Company intends to continue to invest significant amounts in research and development for new
products and for enhancements to existing products. Research and development expenditures for the
Company were $5,465,000 or 35% of net sales in 2001 and $1,333,000 or 7% of net sales in 2000. The
increase was primarily a result of the strategic decision to focus on the development of the Company’s optical
communication sub-component product line.

As of February 28, 2002, the Company employed 85 full-time scientists and engineers compared to
20 as of February 28, 2001. Cutside firms and consultants are selectively engaged tc develop or assist with
the development of new preducts when opportunities exist.

Compliance with Environmental Laws

The Company is subject to evolving Federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations in the past has had no material effect on the capital expenditures,
earmnings or competitive position of the Company. The Company believes that it complies in all material
respects with existing environmental laws and regulations applicable to it. However, the Company’s Salem,
New Hampshire headquarters are currently the subject of environmental testing and monitoring relating to
soil and groundwater contamination that occurred under prior ownership. The costs incurred to date for such
testing and for remediation planning have been paid by third parties. The Company believes that the costs of
any required remediaticn will be covered by an environmental indemnity obtained from the seller, John
Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company. In addition, it is management’s understanding that in April 1996,
the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection circulated notices to parties identified as
“potentially responsible parties” with respect to the Company’s Salem, New Hampshire headquarters. The
Company did not receive such notice. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations in the future may
require additional capital expenditures, and the Company expects that in the foreseeable future such capital
expenditures will be financed by cash flow from operations.

Employees

As of February 28, 2002, the Company employed approximately 255 persons, of which 18 were
part-time employees. None of the Company’s employees are represented by a labor union and the Company
believes that it has good relations with its employees.

ITEM 2 - PROPERTIES

The Company currently conducts its business at two Company-owned facilities and in two leased
facilities. The Company’s headquarters are located in a 95,000 square foot facility in Salem, New Hampshire,
which also houses research and development, manufacturing, sales and distribution capacities for the
Company’s specialized lighting and specialty optical fiber products. In December 2000, the Company
purchased a 65,000 square foot building and property located in Dollard-des-Ormeaux, Quebec for research
and development, manufacturing and sales and distribution by its Canadian subsidiary, StockerYale Canada.
StockerYale Asia Pte, Ltd. operaies out of an approximately 2,733 square foot leased office space in
Singapore. StockerYale (IRL), Ltd leases approximately 5,500 square feet in Cork Ireland.
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The Company’s Salem facility i1s owned by the Company subject to a mortgage granted to Granite State Bank,
which secures obligations of the Company to such party. The Company’s Canadian facility in Dollard-des-
Ormeaux is owned by the Company subject to a mortgage granted to Toronto Dominion Bank, which secures
obligations of the Company to such party. See “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The Company’s facilities are generally operated on the basis of one shift per day, five days per week.
Management considers the facilities to be in generally good condition, to be adequately maintained and
insured, and sufficient to satisfy the Company’s needs for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCCEEDINGS

At times the Company may be involved in disputes and/or litigation with respect to its products and
operations in its normal course of business. The Company does not believe that the ultimate impact of the
resolution of such matters would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations. The Company is not currently involved in any legal proceedings.

ITEM 4 - SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001.
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PART II

ITEM § - MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company’s Commen Stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “STKR.”
From June 24, 1999 until May 11, 20090, the Company’s Common Stock was quoted on the OTC-Bulletin
Board under the same symbol. Prior to June 24, 1999, the Company’s Common Stock was listed on the
Nasdaq SmallCap Stock Market since January 29, 1996, also under the symbol “STKR”. The following table
sets forth the quarterly high and low sales prices for the Common Stock as reported by Nasdaq for the periods
indicated:

2000 High Low
First Quarter $25.31 $0.72
Second Quarter $24.94 $6.50
Third Quarter $48.38 $21.06
Fourth Quarter $41.50 $10.50
2001

First Quarter $19.88 $7.75
Second Quarter $14.95 $8.50
Third Quarter $15.08 $6.79
Fourth Quarter $12.30 $491
Holders

As of February 28, 2002, there were approximately 2,365 holders of the Company’s common stock.

Dividends

The Company does not expect to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. The payment
of any future dividends will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend upen,
among other things, future eamings, operations, capital requirements, the general financial condition of the
Company and general business conditions.
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ITEM 6 - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data with respect to the Company’s statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and with respect to the Company’s balance
sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
which appear elsewhere in this report and which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent
auditors. The following selected consolidated financial data with respect to the Company’s statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 and with respect to the Company’s balance
sheets as of December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 are derived from the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements, which are not included herein. The data should be read in conjunction with the

consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information included herein.

For the Years Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in thousands)
Net Revenues $ 15581 § 18366 $§ 11,483 3 9,273 § 7214
Operating Loss from Continuing
Operations (14,156)  (1,200) (609) (8,212) (3,063)
Operating Loss from Discontinued
Operations 0 43 6 100 197
Loss from Continuing Operations (13,671) (1,533) (895) (5,672) (296)
Loss from Discontinued Operations (191) (1,862) (163) (4,334) (431)
Loss per share from Continuing
Operations-Basic and Diluted (1.28) (0.18) (0.12) (0.92) (0.06)
Loss per share from Discontinued
Operations-Basic and Diluted (0.02) (0.21) (0.02) (0.70) (0.08)
For the Years Ended December 31,
Balamce Sheet Data 2001 2000 1999 1998 1
(in thousands)
Working Capital $ 2,688 § 17,301 $ (338) § (237) %
Total Assets 43,360 36,981 16,679 15,997
Net Assets of Discontinued Operations 0 1,100 2,092 2,046
Total Liabilities 13,335 9,082 12,925 13,356
Stockholders' Equity 30,025 27,899 3,754 4,654
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ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and capital resources
and liquidity should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes
included elsewhere herein

Background

StockerYale is an independent designer and manufacturer of optical communication sub-components and
specialty optical fiber used in the building of optical networks, as well as structured light lasers, specialized
fiber optic, fluorescent, and LED illumination products for the machine vision and industrial inspection
industries.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000
Net Sales

Net sales were $15.6 million in 2001 compared to $18.4 million in 2000, a decrease of 15% or-$2.8 million.

Net sales from the Company’s specialized illumination products were $10.8 million in 2001 compared to
$13.6 millicn in 2000, a decrease of 21% or $2.8 million. The decrease was primarily caused by a reduction in
demand due to a general slow down in the semi-conductor, disk drive inspection and electronic assembly
markets. The majority of the Company’s sales of specialized illumination products are made to companies in
industries who use specialized lighting for industrial inspection and machine vision applications.

Net sales from the Company’s optical sub-component products were $3.6 million in 2001 compared to $3.0
million in 2000, an increase of 21% or $0.6 million.

Net sales from the Company’s other products, largely printers and recorders, decreased from $1.8 million in
2000 to $1.2 million in 2001. The Company has discontinued this product line.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales were $11.3 million in 2001 compared to $11.5 million in 2000, a decrease of 1% or $157,000.
The decrease in cost of sales resulted primarily from the decrease in net sales.

Gross profit was $4.3 million or 28% in 2001 compared to $6.9 million or 38% in 2000. Gross margin
declined primarily due to unabsorbed fixed overhead costs related to the decrease in revenue in the
illumination business as well as increased depreciation and incremental management costs related to the
implementation of specialty optical fiber and optical components manufacturing capacity in anticipation of
revenues in 2002. The Company also recorded a charge of approximately $0.4 millicn related to inventory
obsolescence related to the discontinuation of its printer and recorder product line.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $10.3 million from $8.1 million in 2000 to $18.4 million 2001. The increase is
directly related to the Company’s new business strategy to invest in the optical components market.

Research and development expenses rose $4.2 million from $1.3 million in 2000 to $5.5 million in 2001,
Salaries and benefits increased $2.7 million as the scientific and engineering staff evolved from 24 at
December 31, 2000 to 85 at December 31, 2001. The increase in professional staff completed the Company’s
substantial intellectual capital investment in the optical components and specialty optical fiber markets.
Prototype material expenses and higher depreciation costs accounted for $1.1 million of the higher research
and development expenses.

Selling expenses increased $2.3 million as a result of staff doubling from 12 to 24 representing a $1.0 million
growth in salaries, benefits, commissions and traveling expenses. In addition, advertising, promotion and
trade show costs increased from $0.4 million to $1.0 million. The majority of these higher expenses were in
support of the Company’s strategic initiative into the specialty optical fiber market,

General and administrative expenses more than doubled from $3.6 million in 2000 to $7.8 million in 2001.
Salaries and associated costs, including benefit and travel expenses, rose $0.9 million as headcount grew from
27 to 35. Occupancy and professional fees rose $1.6 million while Information Technology costs increased
$0.5 million. The full year impact of the June 2001 acquisition of CorkOpt Ltd. also represented a $0.5
million increase in general and administrative expenses. The Company believes these incremental costs were
necessary to provide the infrastructure to support the new complexity of the Company.

The increase in operating expenses in 2001 versus 2000 was based upon a strategic decision of the Company
to invest in the optical component and specialty optical fiber markets. These expenses are expected to
moderate in 2002 and decline significantly as a percentage of revenue.

Interest and Other Income

Interest and other income was $441,000 in 2001 compared to $394,000 in 2000. Interest and other income
were comprised primarily of $425,000 of interest income for 2001.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $757,000 in 2001 compared to $475,000 in 2000. The increase in interest expense
resulted primarily from an increase in borrowings to fund working capital.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The tax benefit recorded in 2001 relates primarily to net operating losses ($465,000) and research and
development tax credits ($236,000) being benefited in the Canadian tax jurisdiction. In accordance with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,
the deferred tax assets were recognized up to the amount offsetting deferred tax liabilities in the applicable tax
jurisdiction.

17




Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net Sales

Net sales were $18.4 million in 2000 compared to $11.5 million in 1999, an increase of 60% or $6.9 million.
Net sales from the Company’s specialized illumination products were $13.6 million in 2000 compared to $8.2
million in 1999, an increase of 65.9% or $5.4 million. The increase was largely due to higher sales of
structured light lasers and fluorescent light products, which grew $2.4 million and $1.8 million, respectively.
Net sales from the Company’s optical communication sub-component products doubled to $3.0 millien in
2000 compared to $1.5 million in 1999. These increases were a direct result of the Company’s efforts to
implement our strategic business plan to focus on optical sub-component and specialized illumination
products.

Net sales from the Company’s other products, largely printer and recorders, increased slightly from $1.7
million in 1999 to $1.8 million in 2000. The Company plans to discontinue these product lines by the end of
2001.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales were $11.0 million in 2000 compared to $7.0 million in 1999, an increase of 57.1% or $4.0
million. The increase in cost of sales resulted primarily from an increase in net sales during the same period.
The Company alsc recorded a $494,000 inventory impairment charge in 2000 for the printer and recorder
inventory as a result of the Company’s decision to exit these product lines by the end of 2001. The printer and
recorder product line incorporated older technology, some of which was becoming obsolete. In light of the
Company’s business strategy to focus on the optical sub-components and specialized illumination lines of
business, the Company determined that exiting these product lines was a more productive use of corporate
resources than investing in the research and development that would have been necessary to upgrade the
printer and recorder preduct lines. The inventory impairment charge relating to this decision was unrelated to
the discontinued operations discussed above and is included in cost of sales in the accompanying statement of
operations.

Gross profit was $6.9 million in 2000 compared to $4.5 million in 1999, an increase of 53.3% or $2.4 million.
Gross margin decreased from 39.1% in 1999 to 37.5% in 2000. Gross margin declined primarily because of
the inventory impairment charge of $494,000. Excluding this non-cash, non-recurring charge, gross margin
increased to 40.2% in 20C0.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $8.1 million in 2000 compared to $5.1 million in 1999, an increase of
approximately $3.0 million, and remained at 44% of net sales. A significant portion of this increase is
attributable to the Company’s efforts to implement its new business strategy, for example, through increased
hiring and facility expansion.

Included in operating expenses were $604,000 and $483,000 of amertization expense primarily comprised of
goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets associated with acquisitions. Also included in operating
expenses for 2000 was a non-cash, non-recurring charge of $402,000 representing in-process research and
development acquired in the acquisition of CorkOpt, Ltd.
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Selling expenses were $2.2 million in 2000, or 12% of net sales, compared to $1.7 million in 1999, or 14.8%
of net sales. Selling expenses increased mainly due to the additional staffing and associated expenses related
to the specialty optical fiber sales and marketing group of approximately $140,000; increases in travel,
advertising and tradeshows make up the balance of the increase. General and administrative expenses were
$3.6 million in 2000, or 20.0% of net sales, compared to $2.2 million, or 19.1% of net sales in fiscal 1999.
General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to growth in staffing levels of administrative
personnel of approximately $800,000, which includes information technology services, finance and
administration. Research and development expenses were $1.3 million in 2000, or 7.1% of net sales compared
to $788,000, or 6.9% of net sales in 1999, reflecting our strategy of making significant investments in
scientists and research personnel for the optical sub-component product lines.

Interest and Other Income

Interest and other income was $394,000 in 2000 compared to $318,000 in 1999. Interest and other income
were comprised primarily of $340,000 of interest income for 2000. In 1999, interest and other income
included a gain of $164,000 from the sale of business assets relating to the Company’s military compass
product line and $91,000 from the sale of marketable securities.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $475,000 in 2000 compared to $526,000 in 1999. The decrease in interest expense
resulted primarily from a decrease in borrowings to fund working capital.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The Company recorded a provision for income taxes of $252,000 in 2000 compared to $78,000 in 1999. The
tax provision is a result of taxable income generated in Canada that could not be used to offset operating
losses in the United States. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance against its net deferred tax
assets in 2000 and 1999 after concluding that it is not likely such deferred tax asset will be realized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, the Company has financed operations through private equity placements, third-party credit
facilities and cash from operations. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company completed a
private placement transaction selling an aggregate of 1,700,000 shares of common stock resulting in net
proceeds of approximately $16 million. The Company has used the proceeds from the private placement
primarily to fund operating losses, capital expenditures, repayment of debt and for general working capital
purposes. As of December 31, 2001, unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were $3.6 million.

Cash Flows

Cash used in operating activities was $9.7 million in 2001, as a result of a net loss of $13.9 million offset by
depreciation and amortization of $2.1 million and an increase in accounts payable of $2.1 million.




Cash used in investing activities was $18.5 million. The principal expenditures were $4.0 million for a new
15,000 square-foot research and development facility in Salem, NH; $8.5 million for specialty optical fiber
equipment in Salem, NH, and $4.7 million for a class 100 clean room, test and measurement equipment and
production equipment for optical components in Montreal, Quebec. The Company incurred approximately
$1.5 million upgrading both its Salem, NH and Montreal, Quebec facilities. In addition, the Company
received net proceeds of $659,000 upon the sale of its discontinued coperations and made a net investment of
$220,000 in the Optune joint venture.

Cash provided by financing activities was $17.5 million in 2001 principally as a result of the Company’s sale
of common stock through a private placement transaction.

Borrowing Agreements

On May 19, 2001, the Company entered into a credit agreement with Merrill Lynch Financial Services, Inc.
providing total borrowing availability up to $6,000,000. Initial proceeds were used to pay off the credit
agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. The new credit facility with Merrill
Lynch consists of a line of credit of up to $2,500,000 and a reducing revolver in the amount of $3,500,000. As
of December 31, 2001, $2,986,000 was outstanding under the reducing revolver. Approximately $3,014,000
was available for additional borrowings through the reducing revolver and the line of credit. The outstanding
principal balance of all advances under this credit facility bears interest at 2.5% over the one month LIBOR
rate. As of December 31, 2001 the interest rate was approximately 4.3%. The Company’s obligations under
this credit facility are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets excluding real property plus a
pledge of restricted cash in the amount of $2,000,000. In addition, the Company is required to maintain a $7.8
million Tangible Net Worth. The Company is in compliance with all provisions of the credit agreement.
These restrictions will lapse when the Company achieves profitability or at such time as no balance is
outstanding. The reducing revolver is a seven-year loan with monthly principal and interest payments
beginning in 2002. The line of credit is subject to an annual renewal.

On December 5, 2000, StockerYale Canada amended its credit agreement with Toronto Dominion Bank. The
credit agreement provides for (a) a $3,500,000 CDN operating line of credit of which $1,000,000 CDN must
be offset by credit balances; (b) two mortgage loans of $2,020,000 CDN and (¢) four term notes totaling up to
$1,049,000 CDN. The line of credit bears interest at 1% over Toronto Dominion’s prime rate, requires
monthly payments of interest only, and is payable on demand. As of December 31, 2001, $836,630 CDN
($525,571 US) was outstanding under the line of credit and approximately $2,663,370 ($1,673,129 US) was
available for additional borrowings. The two mortgages require monthly principal payments of $10,797 CDN
(approximately $7,200 US) and $1,111 CDN (approximately $698 US) plus interest at prime rate plus 0.875%
and mature in December 2015 and July 2016. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on the
mortgage loans was $2,008,377 CDN ($1,269,244 US). The four term loans require monthly principle
payments of approximately $36,125 CDN ($22,694 US) plus interest ranging from the prime rate plus 1.25%
to 2.0% and mature between May 2002 and October 2006. On December 31, 2001, the outstanding aggregate
balance on the term loans was $878,375 CDN ($562,502 US).
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On October 12, 2000, the Company entered into a joint venture with Dr. Nicolae Miron and formed Optune
Technologies, Inc., a Quebec corporation, to develop a new class of tunable optical filters. Under the terms of
this joint venture arrangement, the Company owns a 49% equity interest in Optune and the Company agreed
to contribute an aggregate of $4,000,000 to cover all operating costs of the joint venture including salaries,
equipment and facility costs. The contributions are to be made over a two-year period pursuant to a fixed
milestone schedule. The Company is recording 100% of the losses associated with the research and
development joint venture in the accompanying statement of operations as research and development expense.
As of December 31, 2001, the Company has provided approximately $936,000 CDN ($600,000 USD) of
funding to the joint venture and recorded approximately $400,000 USD of research and development
expenses related to the operating losses for the year ended December 31, 2001.

In April 2001, the Company entered into a research and development joint venture agreement to form
Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC with Dr. Danny Wong, a scientist employed by the
Company, to develop specialty optical fiber products. In exchange for a 60% ownership interest in Innovative
Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC, the Company has committed to fund up to $7.0 million over a two-
year period to cover all operating costs of the majority owned subsidiary, including salaries, equipment and
facility costs. Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC has been consolidated by the Company
and the Company has recorded 100% of the losses associated with Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber
Components LLC as research and development expense in the accompanying statement of operations. For the
year ending December 31, 2001, the Company has funded $324,000 and recorded an operating loss of
$94,000, related to the iSOF joint venture.

The Company’s headquarters in Salem, New Hampshire is subject to a mortgage and note issued to Granite
Bank on August 26, 1996 (the “Granite Note”). The Granite Note, in an initial principal amount of $1,500,000
is due August 29, 2011. The Granite Note bears interest at a rate of 7.50% per annum and is reviewed
annually in August. The principal and interest are repayable in 180 equal monthly installments. In accordance
with the terms of the Granite Note, the Company may prepay amounts outstanding there under, in whole or in
part, at any time without premium or penalty. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on the
Granite Note was $1,195,000.

On May 20, 1997, the Company entered into an equipment line of credit agreement with Granite Bank to
finance capital equipment related to new product development. The line of credit provides that equipment
purchases will be converted quarterly into a series of five-year notes, not to exceed $500,000 in the aggregate,
bearing interest at the prime rate plus .75%.

From time to time, the Company contemplates raising additional capital by the issuance of equity securities,
the proceeds of which may be used, among other things, to fund working capital needs and capital
expenditures. As of March 8, 2002, the Company raised an additional $9.7 million through a private
placement of 1,242,600 shares. The Company believes this additional capital coupled with its available lines
of credit will be sufficient to cover operating losses, working capital, debt service and capital expenditures
through the next twelve months.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2001, and the effect
such obligations are expected to have on its liquidity and cash flow in future pericds;

(in thousands)

Debt Joint Venture Obligations
Year  QOperating Leases Obligations (1) Optune Technologies (2) ISOFC (3) Total
2002 $ 183 $ 4052 § 600 $ 3,100 § 7,395
2003 125 716 - 3,100 3,941
2004 39 €30 - - 669
2005 11 679 - - 690
2006 - 122 - - 122
Thereafter - 715 - - 715
Total S__358 £ 6914 S_600 8 6200 S 14,072
¢} Includes approximately $3.5 million of credit lines, which the Company expects to renew in 2002.

) Optune Technologies, Inc (Optune) is a joint venture between StockerYale, Inc and Dr. Nicolae
Miron. Optune was formed in October 2000 and, in exchange for a 49% equity interest in Optune,
StockerYale has agreed to contribute an aggregate of $4,000,000 to cover all operating costs of Optune
including salaries, equipment and facility costs. Over the past fifieen months ending December 31, 2001,
StockerYale has contributed $600,000 to Optune’s operating costs. StockerYale demonstrated a prototype of
a new class tunable optical filters (TOFs), designed by Optune, in Octcber 2001 at the ECOC in Amsterdam.
A refined prototype was demonstrated at the Optical Fiber Conference (OFC) in March of 2002. Both
partners are currently evaluating several options regarding the next steps in product develcpment. At this
time, StockerYale expects to fund an additional $600,000 in 2002, which will result in a cumulative funding
of $1,200,000. The remaining commitment of additional $2,800,000 has not been included in the table above,
since it is dependent upon strategic decisions by the partners regarding further product development and
manufacturing.

3) Innovative Specialty Optical Components LLC (iISOFC) is a majority owned subsidiary of
StockerYale. The Company, which owns approximately 60% of the outstanding equity in iSOFC, has
committed tc fund up to $7,000,000 over a two-year period to cover all operating costs of the majority owned
subsidiary, including salaries, equipment and facility costs. As of December 31, 2001, StockerYale has
funded $324,000 for capital equipment and $94,000 of operating losses. These expenditures were specifically
identified as iSOFC.

Separately, StockerYale purchased and installed $4.7 million of capital equipment for the specialty fiber
components business in 2001. In addition, StockerYale constructed a new $4.0 million research and
development facility in 2001. Because both StockerYale and iSOFC will derive financial benefits from these
investments in the future, StockerYale decided it would be appropriate for StockerYale to own the equipment
and facilities and recover these expenditures by leasing the equipment and facilities to iSOFC thus satisfying
the equipment and facility costs of the contractual obligation. StockerYale estimates these to be
approximately $0.5 million annually beginning in 2002.
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StockerYale also plans to incur approximately $2.1 million annually beginning in 2002 for salaries, benefits
and operating expenses directly associated with i1SOFC. In addition, StockerYale expects to charge iSOFC
approximately $0.5 million annually beginning in 2002 for administration support, including accounting,
human resources and information technology services.

The sum of the leasing equipment and facilities, iSOFC staffing and operating expenses and administrative
support will be approximately $3.1 million annually.

Reeent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141 requires that all business
combinations be accounted for under the purchase method only and that certain acquired intangible assets in a
business combination be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 141 is effective for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and for all business combinations accounted for by the purchase
method for which the date of acquisition is after June 30, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which requires that the
ratable amortization of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles be replaced with periodic impairment tests
and that most intangible assets other than goodwill be amortized over their useful lives. Certain intangibles
will be allowed indefinite lives and will not be amortized but rather evaluated for impairment annually based
on fair market value. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and will thus be adopted by the Company, as required on January 1, 2002. Management
has reviewed SFAS No. 142 and will perform the impairment tests during fiscal 2002 to determine if there
has been or will be an impairment of goodwill. In addition, the Company will continue to amortize intangible
assets over their useful lives. The Company will stop amortizing goodwill effective January 1, 2002.
Goodwill amortization was $326,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets. SFAS No. 144 supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of. SFAS No. 144 applies to all long-lived assets (including
discontinued operations) and consequently amends APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting Results of Operations-
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business. SFAS No. 144 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and thus will be adopted by the
Company, as required, on January 1, 2002. Management is currently determining what effect, if any, SFAS
No. 144 will have on its financial position and results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies
StockerYale’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires
StockerYale to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
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and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, StockerYale
evaluates its estimates, including, accounts receivable, inventories and goodwill and intangible assets.
StockerYale develops its estimates based on historical experience as well as assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

StockerYale believes the following critical policies affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Accounts Receivable:

The Company reviews the financial condition of all new customers prior to granting credit. After completing
the credit review, the Company establishes a credit line for each customer. Periodically, the Company reviews
the credit line for all major customers and adjusts the credit limit based upon an updated financial condition of
the customer, historical sales and payment information and expected future sales. The Company has a large
number of customers; therefore, material credit risk is limited to only a small number of customers. The
Company pericdically reviews the collectibility of its accounts receivable. Provisions are established for
accounts that are potentially uncollectible. Determining adequate reserves for accounts receivable requires
management’s judgment. Conditions impacting the cellectability of the Company’s receivables could cause
actual asset write-offs to be materially different than the reserved balances as of December 31, 2001.

Inventory Obsolescence:

The Company values inventories at the lower of cost or market using the first in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.
The Company specifically evaluates historical and forecasted demand of the illumination product line to
determine if the carrying value of both finished goods and raw materials is recoverable through future sales.
The Company also estimates the impact of increased revenues for new products versus the potential
obsolescence of older products on a case-by-case basis. The Company does not anticipate establishing an
inventory reserve for the optical components product line since these products are primarily manufactured
based upon a customer order; actual results could be different from management’s estimates and assumptions.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The Company reviews the potential impairment of goodwill and intangible assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers to
be important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

o significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy of our overall
business; and

o significant negative industry or economic trends.
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When the Company determines the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets may not be recoverable
based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, the Company will assess any
potential impairment based on undiscounted future cash flows.

Certain Factors Affecting Future Operating Results

Statements, other than historical facts, made herein may constitute forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, which may cause actual results to differ materially
from those, anticipated in such statements. The factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
anticipated results include, without limitation, the Company’s ability to, (i) compete with entities that have
greater financial, technical and marketing resources than the Company, (ii) develop and market new products
in its various business lines, (iii) gain sufficient market acceptance for its optical communications sub-
component products (iv) obtain financing on favorable terms or refinance indebtedness prior to maturity or (v)
raise capital through equity or debt to fund anticipated expenditures and (vi) risks inherent with international
operations. In addition, general economic conditions in the United States, Europe, Southeast Asia, and
elsewhere may affect the Company’s results.

The Company may not ebtain sufficient capital to fund its needs and additional funding may be dilutive
to current security holders

The Company’s future capital requirements will depend on a number of factors, including its profitability,
growth rate, working capital requirements, expenses associated with protection of the Company’s patents and
other intellectual property, and costs of future research and development activities. Future operating results
will depend, in part, on the Company’s ability to obtain and manage capital sufficient to finance its business.
To the extent that funds currently available or expected to be generated from operations are not sufficient to
meet current or planned operating requirements, the Company will seek to obtain additional funds through
bank credit facilities, equity or debt financing, collaborative or other arrangements with corporate partners
and from other sources. Additional funding may not be available when needed or on acceptable terms, which
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
If adequate funds are not available, the Company may be required to delay or to eliminate certain
expenditures or to license to third parties the rights to commercialize technologies that the Company would
otherwise seek to develop. In addition, in the event that the Company obtains any additional funding, such
financing may have a substantially dilutive effect on the holders of the Company’s securities.

The Company may not accomplish its new busimess strategy; its photonics products may not gaim
sufficient market acceptance to result in the number of orders for the Company to achieve profitability

The Company’s business strategy is to shift away from its historical lines of businesses and direct the
Company’s resources to develop, manufacture and market the Company’s specialty optical fiber and optical
sub-component products for use in industrial inspection applications and in the telecommunications industry.
The Company’s specialty optical fiber and optical sub-component products may not achieve market
acceptance with commercial and industrial purchasers. Without market acceptance, the Company may not
receive a sufficient number of orders for its specialty optical fiber and optical sub-component products to
achieve profitability. In addition, even if the Company’s specialty optical fiber, and optical sub-component
products achieve market acceptance, should these products not prove to be cost-effective and reliable, or offer
advantages over comparable products sold by the Company’s competitors, they may lose that acceptance.
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The Company may face delays, difficulties or unanticipated costs in expanding its sales and distribution
capabilities necessary to gaim market acceptance for its products

The Company is working to expand its sales, distribution and marketing capabilities for the Company’s
specialty optical fiber, optical subcomponent and illuminaticn products in the United States and abroad. To
market its products directly, the Company must develop an effective marketing and sales force with technical
expertise and a supporting distribution capability. The Company may choose or find it necessary to enter into
strategic partnerships on uncertain but potentially unfavorable terms tc sell, market and distribute its products.

The Company has many competiters in its field and its technologies may not remain competitive

The Company participates in a rapidly eveolving field in which technological developments are expected to
continue at a rapid pace. The Company has many competitors in the United States and abroad, including
various fiber optic component manufacturers, universities and other private and public research institutions.
The Company’s success depends upon its ability to develop and maintain a competitive position in the
product categories and technologies on which the Company focuses. The introduction of new products
incorporating new techneclogies of the emergence of new industry standards could make it more difficult for
the Company’s existing products to compete in terms of pricing or functionality. Many of the Company’s
competitors have greater capabilities, experience and financial resources than the Company. Competition is
intense and is expected to increase as new products enter the market and new technologies become available.

If the Company fails to maintain acceptable manufacturing yields, the Company may meed to delay
product shipmemnts and its gross margins could be impaired

The manufacture of the Company’s products involves highly complex and labor intensive processes. If
production facilities or personnel are not adequate for these demands, the Company’s manufacturing yields,
which is the percentage of its products that meet customer specifications, could decline, resulting in product
shipment delays, possible lost revenue oppeortunities, and impaired gross margins. In response to changes in
product specifications and customer needs, the Company’s manufacturing process may experience changes
that could significantly reduce manufacturing yields. The Company’s production yields could also be lower if
the Company receives or inadvertently uses defective materials from its suppliers. The Company cannot be
sure that its manufacturing facilities will achieve or maintain acceptable yields in the future.

The Company’s customers are not obligated to buy material amounts of its products and may cancel or
defer purchases on short notice

The Company’s customers typically purchase its products under individual purchase crders and may cancel or
defer purchases on short notice without significant penalty. Accordingly, sales in a particular period are
difficult to predict. Decreases in purchases, cancellations of purchase orders or deferrals of purchases may
have a material adverse effect on the Company, particularly if the Company does not anticipate them.
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There are uncertainties associated with the Company’s acquisition and joint venture strategy

The Company intends, from time tc time, to evaluate and consider potential acquisitions of businesses or
assets and joint ventures to complement or expand its product lines or business. No assurance can be given
that suitable acquisition candidates can be acquired on acceptable terms or that future acquisitions, if
completed, will be successful. Future acquisitions by the Company could result in the incurrence of debt, the
potentially dilutive issuance of equity securities and the incurrence of contingent liabilities and amortization
expenses related to goodwill and other intangible assets, which could materially adversely affect the
Company’s business, operating results, financial condition and future prospects. The success of any
completed acquisition will depend on the Company’s ability to integrate effectively the acquired business or
assets into the Company’s business and operations. The process of integrating any acquired business or assets
may involve numerous risks, including difficulties in the assimilation of operations and products, the
diversion of management's attention from other business concerns, risks of entering markets in which the
Company has limited or no direct prior experience and the potential loss of key employees of the acquired
businesses.

The Company faces risks associated with its international operations

The Company distributes and sells certain of its products internationally. As a result, the Company is subject
to risks associated with operating in a foreign country, including fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates, imposition of limitations on conversion of foreign currencies into dollars or remittance of dividends and
other payments by foreign subsidiaries, imposition or increase of withholding and other taxes.on remittances
and other payments on foreign subsidiaries, hyperinflation and imposition or increase of investment and other
restrictions by foreign governments. Such risks may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operations and financial condition in the future.
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ITEM 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The information required by Item 8 is presented on pages 29 through 50 of this Form 10-K.

The index to the Company’s consolidated financial statements is set forth below:

Report of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2001 -and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Directors and Stockholders of
StockerYale, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of StockerYale, Inc. (2 Massachusetts
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of StockerYale, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ Arthur Andersen LLP
Arthur Andersen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

February 25, 2002

(except with respect to the

matter discussed in Note 18, as

to which the date is March §, 2002)
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STOCKERYALE, INC, AND SUSSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000
(IN THOUSANDS)

Assets
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade receivables, less reserves of approximately $128 in 2001 and
$134 in 2000
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

GOODWILL, NET OF ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

IDENTIFIED INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

NET ASSETS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt
Short-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Short-term lease obligation
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)

STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY:
Common stock, par value $0.001—
Authorized—100,000,000 and 20,000,000 shares at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively
Issued and outstanding—11,391,825 and 9,385,656 shares at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively
Paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2001 2000
1,576 $ 12,487
2,000 500
2,091 2,671
5,224 5,196
1,078 862

11,969 21716
25,813 8,261
2,419 2,746
2,373 2,752
786 406
- 1,100
43360 §$ 36,981
339§ 46
3,566 1,282
3,791 1,636
1,438 1,332
147 119
9.281 4415
2,862 2,779
929 929
263 959
11 9
58,309 42,071
(381) (129)
(27.914) (14.052)
30,025 27.899
43360 $ 36,981




{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

STOCKERYALE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

2001 2000 1999
NET SALES $ 15,581 18,366 11,483
COST OF SALES 11,303 11,460 7.020
Gross profit 4278 6,906 4,463
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling expenses 4,466 2,152 1,620
General and administrative expenses 7,825 3,615 2,181
Goodwill and intangible amortization expense 678 604 483
Research and Development 5,465 1,333 788
In-Process Research and Development - 402 -
Total operating expenses 18,434 8.106 5.072
Operating loss (14,156) (1,200) (609)
INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME 441 394 318
INTEREST EXPENSE (757) (47%) (526)
Loss from continuing operations before income tax (14,472) (1,281) (817)
provision (benefit)
INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT) 801 252 78
Loss from Continuing Operations 3 (13.671) (1,533) (895)
Loss from Discontinued Operations 191 (1,862) (163)
Net Loss 13,862 (3,395) (1,058)
L0OSS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1.28 (0.18) (0.12)
BASIC AND DILUTED
L0SS PER SHARE FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS $ 0.02 {0.21) (0.02)
BASIC AND DILUTED
NET LOSS PER SHARE — BASIC AND DILUTED 1.30 (0.39) (0.14)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES — BASIC AND DILUTED 10,683 8,711 7,545

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998

Issuance of common stock to
employees

Unrealized gain on investment
Cumulative translation adjustment
Net loss

Comprehensive net less for the
year ended December 31, 1999

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999

Sale of common stock net of
issuance costs of $1.1 million
Conversion of subordinated debt to
common stock

Issuance of common stock for
acquisition of CorkOpt Ltd.
Cumulative translation adjustment
Net loss

Comprehensive net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2000

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000

Sale of common stock net of
issuance costs of $1.4 million
Issuance of common stock to
employees

Cumulative translation adjustment
Net loss

Comprehensive net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2001

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2001

STOCKERYALE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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{IN THOUSANDS)
Accumulated
Commen Stock Other Total
$0.001 Paid-in Accumulated  Comprehensive  Stockholders’ Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Capital {Deficit) Income (Lgss Equity Income (Loss)
7,360 $ 8 $ 14221 $ (9,599) $ 57 % 4,687 5 (9,948)
246 - 200 - - 200 -
- - - - (86) (86) (86)
- - - - 11 11 11
- - - (1,058) - (1,058) (1,058)
I O Y KEY)
7,606 $ 8 $ 14,421 $ (10,657) § gy s 3,754 -
1,289 1 24,106 24,107
366 - 1,350 - - 1,350 -
125 - 2,194 - - 2,194 -
- - - (1 11y 1
- - - (3,395) - (3.395) (3,395)
§ ___ (3.506)
9,386 $ 9 $ 42,071 3 (14,052) § (129) % 27,899
1,700 2 15,904 - - 15,906 -
306 - 334 - - 334 -
- - - - (252) (252) (252)
- - - (13.862) - (13,862) (13,862)
$ (14114
11,392 h) 11 $ 58309 b (27914) 3 381 § 30,025



STOCKERYALE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

(IN THOUSANDS)
2001 2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss . 3 (13,862) $ (3,395) § (1,058)
Less: net loss on discontinued operations (191) (1.862) (163)
3 (13,671) $ (1,533) § (895)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities—
Acquired in Process Research and Development - 402 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets - - (18)
Depreciation and amortization 2,066 1,025 906
Deferred income taxes (696) (130) (116)
Other changes in assets and liabilities—
Accounts receivable, net 580 (819) (243)
Inventories (28) (138) 176
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (216) (210) 66
Accounts payable 2,155 (1,302) 237
Accrued expenses 106 264 (108)
Cash value of life insurance - - (14)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, continuing operations (9,704) (2,441) &)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, discontinued operations - (870) 714
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (9,704) (3,311 705
CASH FLOWS USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (18,912) (5,404) (489)
Net proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 659 - -
Net proceeds from sale of fixed assets - - 43
Net investment in joint venture (220) - -
Long-term investment - (250) -
Business acquired, net of cash acquired - (2) -
Net cash used in investing activities (18.473) (5,656) (446)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of common stock 16,240 24,107 200
Borrowings (repayments) of bank debt 2,688 (2,159) (346)
Restricted cash under credit facility (1,500) (500) -
Note receivable settled 90 10 (100)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 17,518 21,458 (246)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CHANGES IN CASH (252) (89) (7
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (10,911) 12,402 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,487 85 79
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ’ $ 1,576 $ 12487 § 85
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 757 § 577 § 717
Taxes paid $ - 3 42 3 50
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Conversion of subordinated debt to common stock b - § 1,350 § -
Fair value of shares used for acquisition of CorkOpt Ltd. 3 - $ 2,194 § -
Liabilities assumed in acquisition h - $ 717§ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STOCKERYALE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

(1) ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

)

StockerYale, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in 1951, and is primarily engaged in the
design, manufacture and distribution of structured light lasers, specialized fiber optic and
fluorescent illumination products for the machine vision and industrial inspection industries as
well as telecommunication optical sub-component products.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the application of certain
significant accounting policies as described in this note and elsewhere in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and notes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, StockerYale (IRL) Ltd and Lasiris Holdings, Inc., which holds
all of the outstanding shares of StockerYale Canada, and its majority owned subsidiaries,
Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC and StockerYale Asia PTE Ltd. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Restricted Cash

The Company maintains certain levels of restricted cash required as collateral under the
borrowings agreement with Merrill Lynch. The agreement requires that $2,000,600 be held in
escrow as long as there is an cutstanding balance under the agreement. The Company maintains
the restricted cash in highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.

Accounts Receivable

The Company reviews the financial condition of all new customers prior to granting credit.
After completing the credit review, the Company establishes a credit line for each customer.
Periodically, the Company reviews the credit line for all major customers and adjusts the credit
limit based upon an updated financial condition of the customer, historical sales and payment
information and expected future sales. The Company has a large number of customers;
therefore, material credit risk is limited to only a small number of customers. The Company
periodically reviews the collectibility of its accounts receivable. Provisicns are established for
accounts that are potentially uncollectible. Determining adequate reserves for accounts
receivable requires management’s judgment. Conditions impacting the collectability of the
Company’s receivables could cause actual asset write-offs to be materially different than the
reserved balances as of December 31, 2001.
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Inventory Obsolescence

The Company values inventories at the lower of cost or market using the first in, first-out
(“FIFO”) method. The Company specifically evaluates historical and forecasted demand of the
illumination product line to determine if the carrying value of both finished goods and raw
materials is recoverable through future sales. The Company also estimates the impact of
increased revenues for new products versus the potential obsolescence of older products on a
case-by-case basis. The Company does not anticipate establishing an inventory reserve for the
optical components product line since these products are primarily manufactured based upon a
customer order; actual results could be different from management’s estimates and
assumptions.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company reviews the potential impairment of goodwill and intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Factors the Company considers to be important which could trigger an impairment review
include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results;

o significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy of
our overall business; and

o significant negative industry or economic trends.

When the Company determines the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets may not be
recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, the
Company will assess any potential impairment based on future undiscounted cash flows.

Earnings per Share

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128, Earnings
per Share, basic and diluted net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. For the years ended December
31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, 2,329,231, 1,475,857, 1,292,902 options, respectively, were
excluded from the calculation of diluted shares, as their effects are anti-dilutive.

Stock Split

On July 31, 2000, a stock split of the Company’s outstanding common stock was effected in the
form of a 100% dividend to holders of record as of the close of business on July 17, 2000. All
shares and per share amounts of the common stock for all periods have been retroactively
adjusted to reflect the stock split.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales at the time of shipment and when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, performance of seller’s obligation is complete,
seller's price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. If a
loss is anticipated on any contract, a provision for the entire loss is made immediately. The
Securities and Exchange Commission released Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101,
Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, on December 3, 1999.
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This SAB provides additional guidance on the accounting for revenue recognition, including
both broad conceptual discussions as well as certain industry-specific guidance, and the
guidance was effective for the first quarter of fiscal 2000. This new guidance did not have a
material effect on the Company's results of operations or financial position for fiscal 2001.

Depreciation

The Company provides for depreciation on a straight-line basis by charges to expense in
amounts estimated to amortize the costs of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Asset Classification Estimated Useful Life
Building and building improvements 10 to 40 years
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years

Total depreciation expense of property, plant and equipment was approximately $1.4 million in
2001, $0.4 million in 2000, and $0.4 million in 1999.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company provides for amortization on a straight-line basis by charges to expense in
amounts estimated to amortize goodwill and intangible assets over their useful lives as follows:

Asset Classification Estimated Useful Liffe ‘

i
Goodwill 10 years
Identifiable intangibles 10 years
Debt issuance costs Life of loan

Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles was approximately $0.7 million, $0.6 million
and $0.5 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, the Company continually reviews for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the remaining estimated useful life
of goodwill or other intangible assets might warrant revision or that the balance may not be
recoverable. The Company evaluates possible impairment by comparing estimated future cash
flows, before interest expense and on an undiscounted basis, with the net book value of long-
term assets including goodwill and other intangible assets. If undiscounted cash flows are
insufficient to recover assets, further analysis is performed in order to determine the amount of
impairment. An impairment loss is then recorded equal to the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds their fair market value. Fair market value is usually determined
based on the present value of estimated expected future cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved. In instances where goodwill is identified with assets that
are subject to an impairment loss, the carrying amount of the identified goodwill is reduced
before making any reduction to the carrying amounts of other long-lived assets. No impairment
has been identified by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001.

36




Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method. Under this method the
Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial reporting and
tax basis of the assets and liabilities using currently enacted tax rates.

Stock-Based Compensation

During 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which defines a fair value based method of
accounting for an employee stock option or similar equity instrument and encourages all
entities to adopt that method of accounting for all of their employee stock compensation plans.
However, it also allows an entity to continue to measure compensation costs for those plans
using the method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion
No. 25. Entities electing to remain with the accounting in APB Opinion No. 25 must make pro
forma disclosures of net income and, if presented, earnings per share as if the fair value based
method of accounting defined in SFAS No. 123 has been applied (see Note 12).

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The balance sheet accounts on non-U.S. operations, exclusive of stockholders’ equity, are
translated at year-end exchange rates, and income statement accounts are translated at
weighted-average rates in effect during the year; any translation adjustments are made directly
to a component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are
recorded in the statements of operations and have not been material.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in net assets of a business enterprise
during a period from transactions generated from non-owner sources. It includes all changes in
equity during a period except those resulting from investments by owners and distributions to
owners. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in the accompanying
balance sheets consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, short-term debt, current maturities of long-term debt, accounts payable and long-
term debt. The estimated fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying
value as of December 31, 2001.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of trade receivables. The risk is limited due to the relatively large number of
customers composing the Company’s customer base and their dispersion across many
industries and geographic areas within the United States, Europe and Asia. The Company also
insures approximately 90% of export receivables from its Canadian subsidiary and performs
ongoing credit evaluations of existing customers’ financial condition. In 2000, sales to the
Company’s largest single customer accounted for 18% of the Company’s total net sales. No
customer accounted for more than 10% of sales in 2001 or 1999.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results in the future could vary from the amounts derived from
management’s estimates and assumptions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141 requires
that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method only and that
certain acquired intangible assets in a business combination be recognized as assets apart from
goodwill. SFAS No. 141 is effective for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001
and for all business combinations accounted for by the purchase method for which the date of
acquisition is after June 30, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a material effect
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which
requires that the ratable amortization of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles be replaced
with periodic impairment tests and that most intangible assets other than goodwill be amortized
over their useful lives. Certain intangibles will be allowed indefinite lives and will not be
amortized but rather evaluated for impairment annually based on fair market value. The
provisions of SFAS No. 142 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001, and will thus be adopted by the Company, as required on January 1, 2002. Management
has reviewed SFAS No. 142 and will perform the impairment tests during fiscal 2002 to
determine if there has been or will be an impairment of goodwill. [n addition, the Company will
continue to amortize intangible assets over their useful lives. The Company will stop
amortizing goodwill effective January 1, 2002. Goodwill amortization was $326,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2001.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets. SFAS No. 144 supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of. SFAS No. 144 applies to all
long-lived assets (including discontinued operations) and consequently amends APB Opinion
No. 30, Reporting Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business. SFAS No. 144 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001 and thus will be adopted by the Company, as required, on January 1,
2002. Management is currently determining what effect, if any, SFAS No. 144 will have on its
financial position and results of cperations.

Reclassification

Certain amounts reported for prior periods have been reclassified to be consistent with the
current pericd presentation.
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market and include
materials, labor and overhead. Inventories are as follows:

December 31,
2001 2000
(in thousands)
Finished goods $ 1,224 § 1,230
Work-in-process 121 230
Raw materials 4916 4.359
Reserve for obsolescence (1,037) (623)
§ 5224 5,196

Management performs periodic reviews of inventory and disposes of items not required by their
manufacturing plan and reduces the carrying cost of inventory to the lower of cost or market.
The Company recorded a charge of $0.4 million in 2001 and $0.5 million in 2000 related to the
discontinuance of the printer and recorder product line.

NOTE RECEIVABLE

Cn September 19, 2001, the Company sold its machine components and accessories division
for $850,000 in cash and a note receivable of $250,000 from the buyer. The note demands
payment of interest at a rate of 6.25% only for the first six months with interest and principal
payable over the following twelve months. 7The balance due as of December 31, 2001 is
$256,000 and is included in other Long-Term Assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated over a period of 3 to 40
years generally under the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes. During 2001,
the Company retired approximately $2.3 million for fully depreciated equipment related to the

discontinued printer and recorder product line. Property, plant and equipment were as follows:

December 31

2001 2000

(in thousands)
Land § 955 § 306
Building and building improvements 12,558 6,194
Machinery and equipment 14,081 2,015
Furniture and fixtures 1,649 1,842
29,243 10,357
Less: Accumulated depreciation 3.430 2,096
$25813 $ 8261
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 consisted of the following:

2001 2000

(in thousands)
Goodwill $ 8,127 $ 8,127
Debt issuance costs 335 335
Other identified intangible assets 3.549 3.576
12,011 12,038
Less — accumulated amortization 7.219 6,540

$ 4792 $ 5498

ACQUISITIONS

On June 16, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding voting shares of CorkOpt Ltd
for approximately $3.2 million, consisting of approximately $256,000 in cash, 125,382 shares
of the Company’s common stock with an approximate fair value of $2.2 million and assumed
liabilities of approximately $735,000. The Company accounted for the acquisition under the
purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the operating results of CorkOpt Ltd. from the
date of acquisition have been included in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. The Company has allocated the purchase price based on estimates of the fair market
value of the assets acquired, which consist of approximately $830,000 of identifiable tangible
assets including approximately $270,000 of cash, identified intangible assets of approximately
$424,000, goodwill of approximately $1.5 million and approximately $402,000 of in-process
research and development, which was charged to operations in the second quarter of fiscal
2000. The purchase price allocations represent the fair values determined in part by an
independent appraisal. In-process research and development was comprised of twe projects,
which we estimated to be 70% complete and 40% complete, respectively, at the time of the
acquisiticn. The in-process R&D was valued under the income approach, which represents the
estimated fair value based on the risk adjusted cash flows related to the in-process R&D
projects. Financial projections utilized in the valuation were based on historical results and
comparable technologies and the risk-adjusted discount rates were 35% and 50% based on
specific projects. At the date of the acquisition, the development of these projects had not yet
reached technological feasibility and the R&D in process had no alternative future uses.
Accordingly, these costs were expensed in the second quarter of fiscal 2000. The acquisition
was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and therefore pro forma
financial information has not been presented.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2000, the Company decided to discontinue its machine components and accessories
division (“Stilson Die-Draulic”). On March 6, 2001, the Company signed a letter of intent to
sell the net assets of the division for $1.1 million. Accordingly, the Company reported the
results of the operations of the machine tool and accessories division and the associated
impairment charges as discontinued operations. As of December 31, 2000, the assets and
liabilities of the division remaining on the balance sheet consisted of receivables, inventory,
property, plant and equipment, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and lease obligations. The
net loss from discontinued operations was $1.9 million in fiscal 2000 that includes a $1.2
million charge for impairment, principally due to goodwill and net assets of $0.7 million of
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$0.4 million, respectively. The Company has provided a full valuation allowance on the loss
from discontinued operations. In September 2001, the Company completed the sale of Stilson
Die-Draulic for $1.1 million, which resulted in an additional loss of $191,000, which has been
recorded in the accompanying statement of operations.

Certain information with respect to discontinued operations is summarized as follows:

Statement of Operations:

Net sales

Cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative
Goodwill amortization

Other expense (income)

Cost and expenses

Loss from discontinued operations
Impairment charges

Net loss from discontinued operations

(9) INCOME TAXES

Period Ended Year Ended
September 30, December 31
2001 2000 19%9
(in thousands)
1,453 § 2,903 $ 2,861
1,284 2,422 2,270
177 987 974
- 95 95
(&) 109 (315
1,453 3,613 3,024
- (710) (163)
191 1,152 -
191) $ (1.862) $ (163)

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(im thousands)
Current-
Federal $ - $ 67) $ (98)
State - (12) (18)
Foreign (186) 252 78
(186) 173 (38)
Deferred-
Federal - 67 98
State - 12 18
Foreign (615) - -
(615) 79 116
b (801) § 252 b 78
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The following is a reconciliation of the federal income tax (benefit) provision calculated at the
statutory rate of 34% to the recorded amount:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)

Applicable statutory federal
income tax benefit $ (4,923) § (435) % (333)
State income taxes, net of
federal income tax benefit (629) (58) (59)
Non-deductible amortization
and impairment charge 64 544 228
Foreign tax rate differential 23¢9 (242 -
Research and development tax
credits (236) - -
Other, net 217 - (41
Valuation allowance 4.467 443 283

$ (801) % 252 $ 78

The significant items comprising the deferred tax asset and liability at December 31, 2001 and
2000 are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2001 2000

Net operating loss carry
forwards $ 6,049 $ 1,510
Financial reporting reserves not
yet deductible for tax purpose 1,004 834
Accelerated depreciation and
property-basis differences (608) (602)
Identified intangible assets (815) (914)
Research and development tax
credits 465 -
Other (98) 6
Valuation allowance (6,260) (1,793)

S (263) § (959)

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards (NOLs) of
approximately $14.0 million available to offset future taxable income, if any. These carry
forwards expire through 2021 and are subject to review and possible adjustment by the Internal
Revenue Service. The Company’s historical operating losses raise doubt as to the realizability
of the deferred tax assets. As a result, management has provided a valuaticn allowance for a
portion of deferred tax assets that may not be realized. In addition, the Company has research
and development tax credits of $465,000 related to equipment purchased and salaries paid for
research and development projects in Canada. These tax credits expire at various times through
2008 and 2010.

The tax benefit recorded in 2001 relates primarily to net operating losses and research and
development tax credits being benefited in the Canadian tax jurisdiction. SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, the deferred tax assets were recognized up to the amount
offsetting deferred tax liabilities in the applicable tax jurisdiction.

42




(10) DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the

following:
December 31,
2001 2000

(in thousands)
Borrowings under Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo $ -3 323
Borrowings under Credit Agreement with Merrill Lynch 2,986 -
Borrowings under Line of Credit Agreement with Toronto
Dominion Bank 525 -
Borrowings under Term Loans with Toronto Dominion Bank 563 355

Mortgage note payable to Granite Bank (Salem facility),
maturing August 29, 2011, with an interest rate of bank’s

prime rate plus 1% 1,195 1,259
Mortgage Note with Danvers Savings Bank - 601
Borrowings under equipment line of credit 197 175

Mortgage notes payable to Toronto Dominion bank, maturing
December 2015 and July 2016, with an interest rate of bank’s

prime plus 0.875%. 1,269 1,297
Term loan with the Bank of Ireland, maturing on December

31, 2003, with an interest rate of 6 1/2% 80 137
Revolving line of credit, maturing on demand, payable to a

Singapore bank, with interest of prime plus 2% 55 40
Machinery & equipment capital lease obligation, maturing

From December 18, 2002 — April 8, 2005 44 39
Sub-total debt and capital lease obligations 6,914 4,224
Less — Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases 4,052 1,447
Total long-term debt and capital leases s 2862 § 2779

Borrowings under Credit Agreement with Merrill Lynch

On May 19, 2001, the Company entered into a credit agreement with Merrill Lynch Financial
Services, Inc. providing total borrowing availability up to $6,000,000. Initial proceeds were
used to pay off the credit agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Business Credit,
Inc. The new credit facility with Merrill Lynch consists of a line of credit of up to $2,500,000
and a reducing revolver in the amount of $3,500,000. As of December 31, 2001, $2,986,000
was outstanding under the reducing revolver. Approximately $3,014,000 was available for
additional borrowings through the reducing revolver and the line of credit.
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The outstanding principal balance of all advances under this credit facility bears interest at
2.5% over the one month LIBOR rate. As of December 31, the interest rate was approximately
4.3%. The Company’s obligations under this credit facility are secured by substantially all the
Company’s assets, excluding real property, plus a pledge of restricted cash in the amount of
$2,000,000. In addition, the Company is required to maintain a $7.8 million Tangible Net
Worth. The Company is in compliance with all provisions of the credit agreement. These
restrictions will lapse when the Company achieves profitability or at such time as no balance is
outstanding. The reducing revolver is a seven-year loan with monthly principal and interest
payments beginning in 2002. The line of credit is subject to an annual renewal.

Borrowings under Credit Agreement with Toronto Dominion Bank

On December 5, 2000, StockerYale Canada amended its credit agreement with Toronto
Dominion Bank. The credit agreement provides for (a) a $3,500,000 CDN operating line of
credit of which $1,000,000 CDN must be offset by credit balances; (b) two mortgage loans for
$2,020,000 CDN and {c) four term notes totaling up to $1,049,000 CDN. The line of credit
bears interest at 1% over Toronto Dominion’s prime rate, requires monthly payments of interest
only, and is payable on demand. As of December 31, 2001, $836,630 CDN ($525,571 US) was
outstanding under the line of credit and approximately $2,663,37¢ ($1,673,129 US) was
available for additicnal borrowings. The mortgage requires monthly principal payments of
$10,797 CDN (approximately $7,200 US) and $1,111 CDN (approximately $698 US) plus
interest at prime rate plus 0.875% and mature in December 2015 and July 2016. As of
December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on the mortgage loans was $2,008,377 CDN
($1,269,244 US). The four term loans require monthly principle payments of approximately
$36,125 CDN ($22,694 US) plus interest ranging from the prime rate plus 1.25% to 2.0% and
mature between May 2002 and October 2006. On December 31, 2001, the outstanding
aggregate balance on the term loans was $878,375 CDN ($562,502 US).

Borrowings under Equipment Line of Credit with Granite Bank

The Company’s headquarters in Salem, New Hampshire is subject to a mortgage and note
issued to Granite Bank on August 26, 1996 (the “Granite Note”). The Granite Note, in an initial
principal amount of $1,500,000 is due August 29, 2011. The Granite Note bears interest at a
rate of 7.50% per annum and is reviewed annually in August. The principal and interest are
repayable in 180 equal monthly installments. In accordance with the terms of the Granite Note,
the Company may prepay amounts outstanding there under, in whole or in part, at any time
without premium or penalty. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on the Granite
Note was $1,195,000.

On May 20, 1997 the Company entered into an equipment line of credit agreement with Granite
Bank to finance capital equipment related to new product development. The line of credit
provides that equipment purchases will be converted quarterly into a series of five-year notes,
not to exceed $500,000 in the aggregate, bearing interest at the prime rate plus .75%.
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Scheduled future maturities of debt and capital lease obligations for the next five years are as

follows:
Year Ending December 31, (in thousands)

2002 §$ 4,052

2003 $§ 716

2004 § 630

2005 § 679

2006 § 122

Thereafter $ 715

$6,914

(11) STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

On February 18, 2000, the Company announced that all of the holders of its $1.35 million 7-
2% Convertible Subordinated Notes due May 1, 2001 had elected to convert their Notes. The
Notes were converted into 366,092 shares of common stock based on a conversion price of
$3.6875 per share.

On March 3, 2000, the Company completed a private placement of 710,000 common shares at
a price of $13.00 per share, which resulted in net proceeds of approximately $8.8 million.

On June 16, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding voting shares of CorkOpt Ltd
for approximately $3.2 million, consisting of approximately $256,000 in cash, 125,382 shares
of the Company’s common stock with a fair value of $2.2 million and the assumption of
approximately $735,000 of liabilities.

On October 5, 2000, the Company completed a private placement of 409,132 common shares at
a price of $30.00 per share, which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately
$11.7 million.

On November 2, 2000, the Company completed another private placement of 150,000 common
shares at a price of $24.4375 per share, which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of
approximately $3.6 million.

In connection with the private placements, the Company issued 19,957 warrants to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock at $45.00 per share expiring on October 4, 2004. The
Company has determined the fair value of these options to be $723,000 which is netted against
the proceeds in additional paid in capital.

On May 31, 2001, the Company completed a private placement of 1,700,000 shares of its
common stock, par value $.001 per share. The Company offered these shares to eighteen
purchasers at $10.25 per share. The Company did not engage any underwriters in connecticn
with the private placement, but the Company did enter into an agreement with William Blair &
Company to act as exclusive placement agent for the shares. The Company paid a commission
of $1,219,750 to William Blair & Company. The private placement resulted in net proceeds to
the Company of approximately $16 million. Proceeds were used for facility expansion, capital
expenditures and working capital.
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(12) STOCK OPTIONS
Stock Option Plans

In March 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 1996
Option Plan) for the purpose of issuing both Incentive Options and Nonqualified Options to
officers, employees and directors of the Company. A total of 300,000 shares of common stock
were reserved for issuance under this plan.

In May 1998, the Company increased the total shares reserved for issuance under this plan by
300,000 shares for a total of 600,000 shares. In May 1999, the Company increased the total
shares reserved for issuance under this plan by 600,000 shares for a total of 1,200,000 shares
available for issuance.

Options may be granted under the Option Plan on such terms and at such prices as determined
by the Board of Directors, except that the options cannot be granted at less than 100%, or in
certain circumstances not less than 110%, of the fair market value of the common stock on the
date of the grant. Each option will be exercisable after the period or periods specified in the
option agreement, but no option may be exercised after the expiration of 10 years from the date
of grant.

In May 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 2000
Option Plan) for the purpose of issuing both Incentive Options and Nonqualified Options to
officers, employees and directors of the Company. A total of 800,000 shares of common stock
were reserved for issuance under this plan. Options may be granted under the Option Plan on
such terms and at such prices as determined by the Board of Directors, except that the options
cannot be granted at less than 100%, or in certain circumstances not less than 110%, of the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Each option will be exercisable
after the period or periods specified in the option agreement, but no option may be exercised
after the expiration of 10 years from the date of grant. '

The following is a summary of the activity for the Company’s stock options:

Number of Shares Price Range Weighted Average Price

Qutstanding at December 31, 1998 754,080 $0.88-% 3.63 $ 2.57
Granted 820,810 $ 0.66-5% 0.97 $ 081
Forfeited/Cancelled (728,080) $0.88-%3.63 $ 256
Exercised - 3 - b -

Qutstanding at December 31, 1999 846,810 $0.66-% 097 $ 0.81

Exercisable at December 31, 1999 - $ - $ -
Granted 567,300 $ 3.78- $38.00 $ 1048
Forfeited/Cancelled (18,210) $0.81-% 3.78 $ 1.00
Exercised - A - 3 -

Cutstanding at December 31, 2000 1,395,900 $ 0.66- $ 38.00 $ 4.75

Exercisable at December 31, 2000 16,000 $0.88 $ 0.88
Granted 1,273,010 $6.60-$18.13
Forfeited/Cancelled (68,450) $0.84- $32.38
Exercised (291,186) $066-3 0.88

Outstanding at December 31, 2001 2,309,274 0.69- $ 38.00

Exercisable at December 31, 2001 559,464 0.69- § 38.00
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Average Average
Range of OCutstanding at Contractual Life  Exercise  Number Exercisable Exereise
Exercise Price  December 31, 2001 (in Years) Price at December 31, 2001 Prices
$ 0.00-§ 3.80 808,464 7.5 $ 1.87 521,614 $ 082
$ 3.80-8 7.60 92,900 9.8 $ 6.64 - -
$ 7.60-$11.40 93,000 9.7 § 9.65 - -
$11.40-$15.20 1,099,560 9.2 $12.16 16,250 § 1494
$15.20-$19.00 96,250 8.8 $16.62 1,875 § 1593
$19.00-$22.80 95,500 8.8 $20.50 15,875 $ 2074
$22.80-$26.60 12,200 8.6 $24.95 1,000 $ 2500
$26.60-$30.40 11,200 8.8 $28.84 2,800 § 28.84
$30.40-$38.00 200 8.8 $£38.00 50 $ 3800
——2,309274 - 806 S 892 559.464 s 203
The Company had 1,399,540 and 604,100 shares available for grant as of December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

During 2001 and 2000, the weighted average fair value of options granted was $8.91 and $9.76
respectively.

In 2000, the Company granted options to purchase 8,000 shares of common stock with a
weighted average exercise price of $24.94 per share to non-employees. The Company
determined that the fair value of these options totaled $68,000 using the Black-Scholes option
model. The fair value of these options will be recorded as a charge to operations as the options
vest.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company elected to account for its stock-based compensation plan under APB 25.
However, the Company has computed, for pro forma disclosure purposes, the value of all
options granted during 2001 and 2000 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, using the following weighted-average assumptions for grants in
2001, 2000 and 1999:

2001 2000 1999
Risk-free interest rate 3.65%-5.19% 5.17%—-6.69% 5.08%-6.41%
Expected dividend yield - - -
Expected life 5 years 5 years 10 years
Expected volatility 101% 185% 67%

The total value of options granted during 2001, 2000, and 1999 would be amortized on a pro
forma basis over the vesting period of the options. Options generally vest equally over two or
four years.
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13

(14)

(15)

If the Company had accounted for these plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the
Company’s net loss and net loss per share would have increased as reflected in the following
pro forma amounts:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)

Net loss~
As reported $ (13862) $ (3,395) $ (1,057)
Pro forma $ (17,710)  $ 4,537) $ (1,557)
Net loss per share—
As reported $ (1.30) § ©39) § (0.28)
Pro forma $ (1.66) $ (0.52) § (0.41)
EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

In May 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock
Purchase Plan”), which permits the eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock, at a discount, through regular monthly
payroll deductions of up to 10% of their pre-tax gross salary. Subject to adjustment for stock
splits, stock dividends and similar events, a maximum of 100,000 shares of common stock may
be issued under the Stock Purchase Plan. For the year ended December 31, 2001, there were
9,380 shares issued under the Stock Purchase Plan.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

On January 17, 1994, the Company established the StockerYale 401(k) Plan (the Plan). Under
the Plan, employees are allowed to make pretax retirement contributions. In addition, the
Company may make matching contributions, not to exceed 100% of the employee
contributions, and profit sharing contributions at its discretion. The Company made matching
contributions of $57,000, $38,000, and $36,000 in fiscal years 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. The Company incurred costs of approximately $12,000, $5,000, and $5,000 in
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, to administer the Plan.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases facilities and equipment under operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ending December 31, Amoumnt
(in thousands)
2002 $ 183
2003 125
2004 39
Thereafter 11
Total minimum lease payments ) 358

Total rent expense for operating leases charged to operations was $207,000, $164,000 and
$52,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Company is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to its business.
Although the disposition of such legal proceedings cannot be determined with certainty it is the
Company’s opinion that any pending or threatened litigation will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition.
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(16)

7

JOINT VENTURES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

In June 2000, the Company purchased 75,075 shares for $250,000 to obtain a less than 1%
interest in the Giant Loop Corporation. The investment is accounted for on the cost basis and is

adjusted for any other than temporary impairment in value. No impairment was recorded in
2001.

On October 12, 2000, the Company entered into a joint venture with Dr. Nicolae Miron and
formed Optune Technologies, Inc., a Quebec corporation, to develop a new class of tunable
optical filters. Under the terms of this joint venture arrangement, the Company owns a 49%
equity interest in Optune and the Company agreed to contribute an aggregate of $4,000,000 to
cover all operating costs of the joint venture including salaries, equipment and facility costs.
The contributions are to be made over a two-year period pursuant to a fixed milestone schedule.
The Company is recording 100% of the losses associated with the research and development
joint venture in the accompanying statement of operations as research and development
expense. As of December 31, 2001, the Company has provided approximately $936,000 CDN
($600,000 USD) of funding to the joint venture and recorded approximately $400,000 USD of
research and development expenses related to the operating losses for the year ended December
31, 2001.

In April 2001, the Company entered intc a research and development joint venture agreement
to form Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC with Dr. Danny Wong, a scientist
employed by the Company, to develop specialty optical fiber products. In exchange for a 60%
ownership interest in Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC, the Company has
committed to fund up to $7.0 million over a two-year period to cover all operating costs of the
majority owned subsidiary, including salaries, equipment and facility costs. Innovative
Specialty Optical Fiber Components LLC has been consolidated by the Company and the
Company has recorded 100% of the losses associated with Innovative Specialty Optical Fiber
Components LLC as research and development expense in the accompanying statement of
operations. For the year ending December 31, 2001, the Company has funded $324,000 and
recorded an operating loss of $94,000, related to the iSOF joint venture.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has adopted the SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related information. SFAS No. 131 requires financial and supplementary information to
be disclosed on an annual and interim basis of each reportable segment of an enterprise. SFAS
No. 131 also establishes standards for related disclosures about product and services,
geographic areas and major customers. Cperating segments are identified as components of an
enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the
chief decision-making group, in making decisions how to allocate resources and assess
performance. The Company’s chief decision-maker is the chief executive officer.

The Company operated within a single segment of the electronics industry (Illumination
Instruments) in 2001. The Company will operate in two segments in 2002-Illumination and
Optical Components. The Company made significant investments in research and development
and sales and marketing expenses as well as capital equipment and facilities during 2001 in
support of its new optical components and specialty optical fiber business. However, revenues
and gross profits and associated expenses from these businesses are not expected to be material
to overall results until 2002. Therefore, the Company will segregate revenues, profits, expenses,
and assets of the illumination and optical segments beginning in fiscal 2002.
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The Company’s export sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. These sales are as follows:

(im thousands)

Year Ended

December 31, USA Canada Europe Asia Total
2001 $ 9,537 $ 1,883 $ 2,822 $ 1,339 $ 15,581
2000 $ 11,070 $ 1,822 $ 2,698 $ 2,776 $ 18,366
1999 $ 7,209 $ 1,615 $ 1,135 $ 1,523 $ 11,483

The Company’s long-term assets consist of property, plant and equipment located in the
following geographic locations:

(in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, USA Canada Europe Asia Total
2001 $ 17,443 $ 8,018 $ 325 $ 27 $25,813
2000 $ 5,146 $ 2,740 $ 343 $ 32 $ 8,261

(18) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 8, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 1,242,600 shares at $7.76
per share, which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $9.7 million. The
Company did not engage either an underwriter or agent in this transaction. In connection with
the private placement, the Company granted registration rights tc investors. The registration
rights granted to certain investors provide for liquidated damages, in the form of additional
shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to 15% of the total number of
shares purchased by such investor, in the event that the registration statement filed with respect
to such investor’s shares is not effective within 90 days after the closing of the purchase of such
investor’s shares.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART IIL

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL
PERSONS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

Information pertaining to directors and executive officers of the Company is set forth
under “Election of Directors” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Special Meeting in
Lieu of an Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 15, 2002 (the “Proxy
Statement™), and is incorporated herein by reference.

The information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 by the directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 5% of the
Company’s Common Stock required by this item is set forth under “Compliance with Section
16(a) of the Exchange Act” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information pertaining to executive compensation is set forth under “Compensation
of Executive Officers and Directors” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Information pertaining to security ownership of management and certain beneficial
owners of Company Common Stock is set forth under “Voting Securities and Principal
Holders Thereof” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information pertaining to certain relationships and related transactions is set forth
under “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement
and is incorporated herein by reference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON SCHEDULES

To StockerYale, Inc.

We have audited in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United
States, the consolidated financial statements included in StockerVYale, Inc.’s Form 10-K and have
issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2002 (except with respect to the matter discussed in Note
18, as to which the date is March 8, 2002). Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an cpinion
on those statements taken as a whole. Schedule II is the responsibility of the Company’s management
and is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
is not part of the basic financial statements. The schedule has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Arthur Andersen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 25, 2002
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STOCKERYALE, INC
SCHEDULE II
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(in thousands)

(Credit)
Balance at  Charge to Other Balance at
Beginning Costs and Charges End
of Period Expenses Deductions (1) of Period
2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 134 $ 143 $ (149) $128
2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 72 § 64 $ @ $134
1999
Allowance for doubtful accounts § 49 § 23 - $ 72

(1) Reflects uncollectible accounts written off.
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ITEM 14, EXHIBITS, LISTS, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The following is a complete list of Exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K.

Exhibit
Number

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

10.1¢a)

*10.1(b)

*10.1(c)

*10.1(d)

10.2

10.3(a)

10.3(b)

10.3(c)

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Organization of StockerYale, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-KSB for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Amendment, dated May 24, 2001, toc the Amended and Restated Articles of
Organization of StockerYale, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of StockerYale, Inc., incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-SB, as amended, filed on November
2, 1995.

1996 Stock Opticn and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
of the Form S-8 filed by StockerYale, Inc. on June 9, 2000 (No. 333-39080).

Form of Incentive Option Agreement for employees under the 1996 Stock Option
and Incentive Plan.

Form of Nonqualified Option Agreement for employees under the 1996 Stock
Option and Incentive Plan.

Form of Nonqualified Option Agreement for non-employee directors under the
1996 Stock Opticn and Incentive Plan.

Form of Option Agreement for Outside Directors outside the Amended and
Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of
StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-SB, as amended, filed on November 2, 1995.

2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Form S-8 filed by StockerYale, Inc. on June 9, 2000 (No. 333-39082).

Amendment No. 1 to the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3(e) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2001.

Amended Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for employees under the
2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3(f) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 2001.
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10.3(d)

10.3(e)

10.4(a)

*10.4(b)

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8(a)

10.8(b)

10.8(c)

10.8(d)

10.8(e)

Amended Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for employees under
the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3(g) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 2001.

Amended Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Outside Directors
under the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3(h) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 2001.

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Form S-8 filed by StockerYale, Inc. on June 9, 2000 (No. 333-39082).

Amendment No. 1 to 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, dated June 26, 2001.

Voting, Support and Exchange Agreement between Lasiris Holding, Inc.,
StockerYale, Inc. and the stockholders’ of Lasiris, Inc. and certain other parties
named therein, dated May 13, 1998, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.16(a) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB, as amended, for the fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 1998,

Employment Agreement by and among Lasiris, Inc., StockerYale, Inc. and Alain
Beauregard, dated as of May 13, 1998, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.16(b) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB, as amended, for the fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 1998.

Lasiris, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.16(d) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB, as amended, for the
fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1998.

Stock Purchase Agreement by and among StockerYale, Inc., CorkOpt Ltd.,
W.MXKelly, Gary Duffy and Thomas Meade, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed on June 30, 2000.

Stock Purchase Agreement between University College Cork ~ National
University of Ireland, Cork and StockerYale, Inc., incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed on June 30, 2000.

Stock Purchase Agreement between Anne Kelly and StockerYale, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed
on June 30, 2000.

Stock Purchase Agreement between Gerard Conlon and StockerYale, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed
on June 30, 2000.

Stock Purchase Agreement between Enterprise Ireland and StockerYale, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed
on June 30, 2000.
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10.8(f)

10.8(g)

10.8()

10.8()

10.9(a)

10.9(b)

10.10

10.11

10.12(a)

10.12(b)

10.12(c)

Deed of Tax Indemnity by and among StockerYale, Inc., CorkOpt Ltd., W.M.
Kelly, Gary Duffy and Thomas Meade., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.6
of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed on June 30, 2000.

Deed of Indemnity by Liam Kelly in favor of CorkOpt Ltd. and StockerYale,
Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.7 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K,
filed on June 30, 2000.

Assignment of certain inventions by William Kelly to CorkOpt Ltd., incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed on June 30,
2000.

License Agreement between William Kelly and CorkOpt Ltd., incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed on June 30,
2000.

Subscription Agreement, dated November 17, 2000, between StockerYale, Inc.
and Optune Technologies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(a) of
StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Stockholders Agreement, dated November 17, 2000, by and among Optune
Technologies, Inc., StockerYale, Inc. and Nicolae Miron, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000.

Limited Liability. Company Agreement of Innovative Specialty Optical
Components, LLC, dated as of April 26, 2001, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 2001,

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of August 28, 1995, by and between the
Company and John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-SB, as amended, filed
on November 2, 1995,

Promissory Note, due August 29, 2011, issued by StockerYale, Inc. to Granite
Bank, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14(a) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996.

Mortgage Deed and Security Agreement, dated August 29, 1996, granted by
StockerVYale, Inc. to Granite Bank, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14(b)
of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1996.

Collateral Assignment of Leases and Rents, dated August 29, 1996, granted by
StockerYale, Inc. to Granite Bank, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14(c)
of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1996.
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10.13(a) Credit Agreement, dated as of May 13, 1998, by and between Toronto-Dominion
Bank and Lasiris, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(a) of StockerYale,
Inc.’s Form 10-QSB, as amended, for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1998.

10.13(b) Guarantee and Postponement of Claim, dated as of May 13, 1998, by StockerYale,
Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(b) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-
QSB, as amended, for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1998.

*10.13(c) Amendment to Toronto Dominion Credit Facility dated December 5, 2000.

10.14(a) Reducing Revolver Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2001, by and
between Merrill Lynch Financial Services Inc. and StockerYale, Inc., as amended by
letter dated May 16, 2001, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8(a) of
StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001.

10.14(b) Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2001, by and between Merrill
Lynch Financial Services Inc. and StockerYale, Inc., as amended by letter dated May
16, 2001, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8(b) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form
10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001.

10.14(c) Financial Asset Security Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2001, by and between
Merrill Lynch Financial Services Inc. and StockerYale, Inc., incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8(c) of StockerYale, Inc.’s Form 10-QSB for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2001,

*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company
*23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP

*99.1 Letter to Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Temporary Note 3T regarding
Arthur Andersen LLP

*  Filed herewith

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf, thereunto duly
authorized.

STOCKERYALE, INC.

Date: April 1, 2002 By: /s/ Mark W, Blodgett
Mark W, Blodgett, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has
been duly signed beiow by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the date set forth above.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Mark W, Blodgett Chairman of the Board April 1, 2002
Mark W. Blodgett of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer
/s/ Alain Beauregard President, Chief Technology April 1, 2002
Alain Beauregard Officer and Director
/s/ Lawrence Blodgett Director April 1, 2002
Lawrence Blodgett ‘
/s/ Clifford Abbey Director April 1, 2002
Clifford Abbey
/s/ Steven [i. Karol Director April 1, 2002
Steven E. Karol
{s/ Raymond J. Oglethorpe Director April 1, 2002
Raymond J. Oglethorpe
/s/ Dr. Herbert Cordt Director April 1, 2002
Dr. Herbert Cordt
/s/ Francis J. O’Brien Executive Vice President, Chief April 1, 2002
Francis J. O’Brien Financial Officer and Treasurer
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STOCKERYALE, INC.
32 Hampshire Road
Salem, New Hampshire 83079

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING IN LIEU OF AN ANNUAL MEETING CF STOCKHOLDERS

The Special Meeting in lieu of an Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”) of StockerYale,
Inc. (the “Company”), a Massachusetts corporation, will be held at the Company’s headquarters, 32 Hampshire
Road, Salem, New Hampshire 03079, on Wednesday, May 15, 2002 at 10:00 a.m., local time, for the
following purposes: '

1. To elect seven directors to serve until the next annual meeting and until their successors are
duly elected and qualified; and

2. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting and any
adjournments or postponements thereof as well as on matters related to the conduct of the
Meeting.

Accompanying this Notice of Meeting is a proxy statement and a proxy card, together with the 2001

Annual Report of the Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2001.

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 25, 2002 are entitled to notice of, and to vote
at the Meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Meeting in persen, you are asked to complete, sign, date,
and return the enclosed proxy. A proxy may not be effective unless it is received at the office of the

Company’s transfer agent and registrar, Proxy Services, EquiServe, P.0. Box 9398, Bosten, MA (2205-
. 9398 not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Francis J. O’Brien, Clerk

April 15,2002




STOCKERYALE, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT
as of April 15, 2002

Solicitation of Proxies

This proxy statement is furnished in comnectiom with the solicitation of proxies by the
management of SteckerYale, Ine. (the “Company”), 2 Massachusetts corporation, for use at the Special
Meeting in lieu of am Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”) of the Company to be held at
10:00 a.m., local time, on Wednesday, May 15, 2002 at the Company’s headguarters located at 32
Hampshire Road, Salem, New Hampshire, 03079 for the purposes set forth in the Notice of Special
Meeting in fieu of an Annual Meeting of Stockholders. This proxy statement and prexy card are first
being sent to stockholders on or about April 15, 2002.

Appointment of Proxyholders

The persons named in the accompanying proxy card are designated as proxyholders by management
of the Company.

To be valid, the completed, signed, and dated proxy card should be received at the office of the
Company’s transfer agent and registrar, Proxy Services, EquiServe, P.O. Box 9398, Boston, MA 02205-
9398 not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, HOLDERS OF COMMON
STOCK ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD
AND RETURN IT PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

Voting and Proxies

The shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.001 per share, represented by a properly
executed and deposited proxy will be voted on any matter to properly come before the Meeting or any
adjournments or postponements thereof that may be called for or required by law and, if the stockholder
specifies a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, such shares of common stock will be voted
accordingly at the Meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof. If a choice with respect to such
matters is not clearly specified, the persons designated by management in the form of proxy will vote the
shares represented by the proxy (i) “FOR? the election to the Board of Directors of the nominees; and (ii) in
the discretion of the persons named as proxies, upon such other matters as may properly come before the
Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, as well as on matters related to the conduct of the
Meeting.

The proxy confers discretiomary authority upon the named proxyholder with respect to
amendments (o or variations in matters idemtified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and other
matters that may properly come before the Meeting, as well as on matters related to the conduct of the
Meeting. As of the date of this proxy statement, management is not aware of any amendment, variations or
other matters. If such should occur, the persons designated as proxies by management will vote thereon in
accordance with their best judgment, exercising discretionary authority.




The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of at least a majority of the total number of shares
of common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote is necessary to constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at the Meeting. Abstentions, votes withheld from Director nominees and “broker
non-votes” (i.e., shares represented at the Meeting which are held by a broker or other nominee as to which (i)
voting instructions have not been received from the beneficial owners or persons entitled to vote such shares
and (ii) the broker does not have discretionary authority to vote such shares) shall be treated as shares that are
present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present. With respect to the
election of Directors, the By-Laws of the Company provide that such election shall be determined by a
plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders. Therefore, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect
on the outcome of the election of Directors.

Revocation of Proxies

A stockholder who has given a proxy may revoke it as to any matter on which a vote has not already
been cast pursuant to the authority conferred on the proxy, by delivering a later-dated proxy, by delivering to
the Clerk of the Company a written revocation of such proxy, or by appearing and voting in person at the
Meeting.

Annual Report

All holders of record are being sent herewith copies of the Company’s 2001 Annual Report and Form
10-K, which contains audited financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2001. The Annual Report, however, is not part of the proxy soliciting material.

Principal Executive Office

The Company’s principal executive office is located at 32 Hampshire Road, Salem, New Hampshire
03079, and its telephone number is (603) 893-8778.

VYoting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The voting securities of the Company consist of its common stock. As of March 25, 2002 there were
12,004,636 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, each share carrying the right to one vote. The
Directors of the Company have fixed March 25, 2002 as the record date (the “Record Date”) for determining
stockholders entitled to receive notice of, to attend and to vote at the Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof. Transferees of common stock after the Record Date will not be entitled to notice of, or
to vote at, the Meeting.




Security Ownership of Principal Stockholders and Management

The following table sets forth, to the best knowledge of the Company, certain information regarding

the beneficial ownership of the Company’s common stock, as of February 28, 2002, by each person known to
the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of the voting stock of the Company,
each Director of the Company, executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table below and all of
the Company’s Directors and executive officers as a group.

Percent of
Number of Shares of Common Stock
Commoeon steck Beneficially
Name and Address (1) Beneficially Owned (2) Owned (3)
Mark W. Blodgett 4,351,859 (4) 35.8%
Alain Beauregard 664,324 (5) 5.4%
George A. Fryburg 119,465 1.0%
Paul Jortberg 22,710 *
Steven E. Karol 47,600 (6) *
Lawrence W. Blodgett 44,003 (7) *
Clifford L. Abbey 38,000 (8) *
Dr. Herbert Cordt 10,000 *
Raymond J. Oglethorpe 1,000 *
All Directors and Executive Officers as a group
(10 persons) 5,298,961 41.0%
Van Wagoner Capital Management Inc. 1,283,900 10.9 %
345 California Street, Suite 2450
San Francisco, CA 94104
Wellington Management Company, LLP 1,054,400 (%) 9.0 %

75 State Street, 19" Floor
Boston, MA 02109-1809

* Less than one percent.

(M
@

3

4)

Unless otherwise stated, the address for the named party is ¢/o StockerYale, Inc., 32 Hampshire Road Salem, NH
03079.

Includes shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or that will be
exercisable within 60 days of February 28, 2002 in the following amounts: Mr. Mark W. Blodgett, 437,500 shares of
common stock, Mr. Beauregard, 77,500 shares of common stock, Mr. Fryburg, 93,800 shares of common stock, Mr.
Jortberg, 22,500 shares of common stock, Mr. Karol, 17,600 shares of common stock, Mr. Abbey, 28,800 shares of
common stock, Dr. Cordt, 8,000 shares of common stock, and all Directors and executive officers as a group, 685,700
shares of common stock.

In computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person, shares of common stock subject
to options held by that person that are currently exercisable or that become exercisable within 60 days of February 28,
2002 and shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of currently convertible securities or securities that could
become convertible held by that person are deemed outstanding. For purposes of computing the percentage of
outstanding shares of common stock beneficially owned by such person, the shares subject to options that are currently
exercisable within 60 days of February 28, 2002 are deemed to be outstanding for such person but are not deemed to be
outstanding for purposes of computing the ownership percentage of any other person.

Includes 174,314 shares owned by the Helen W. Blodgett Trust, of which Mr. Blodgett is a Trustee, 100,439 shares
owned by the HW Blodgett TR U/A/D 1/22/86 Trust, of which Mr. Blodgett is a Trustee, and 750,000 shares owned of
record by Mr, Blodgett's spouse.




(5) Includes 506,324 shares of stock of Lasiris Holdings, Inc., which are convertible into shares of common stock on a
one-for-one basis.

(6) Includes 20,000 shares owned by HMK Enterprises. Mr. Karol is President and Chief Executive Officer of HMK
Enterprises.

@) Includes 22,200 shares owned indirectly through the Lawrence W. Blodgett Trust, of which Lawrence W. Blodgett is a
Trustee.

(8) Includes 4,000 shares owned by Mr. Abbey’s spouse. Mr. Abbey disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares.

9) These shares are held of record by various client accounts over which Wellington Management Company, LLP has

discretionary power to direct the voting and/or disposition of the shares held by such client accounts pursuant to
management agreements with the clients. Wellington Capital Management, LLP disclaims beneficial ownership of

these shares.

Matters to be Acted Upon

Item 1—Election of Directors

Management proposes the persons named in the following table for election as Directors of the
Company. FEach Director elected will hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his
successor, if any, is elected and qualified, unless he resigns or becomes disqualified to act as a Director. Each
nominee is currently serving as a Director of the Company. Stockholders may vote for no more than seven

nominees for Director.

The affirmative vote of a plurality of the shares present and voting in person or by proxy at the
Meeting is necessary to elect each of these individuals as Directors. The Company believes that each of the
nominees will stand for election and, if elected, will serve as a Director. However, if any nominee fails to stand
for election, the proxies will be voted for the election of such other person(s) as the Board of Directors may
nominate and recommend. The following information concerning the respective nominees has been confirmed

by each of them as of February 28, 2002:

Proposed Ndmﬁnee and Principal Qecupation

Proposed Nominee and Principal Occupation

Mark W. BIOAEELL .ocoovireeerinirree et reese s earanns
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Alain Beauregard ..o
President and Chief Technology Officer

Lawrence W, BIOAGEt......c.oceeivervrverirenrererorenenesnesiesiesressassenes
Consultant

Clifford L. ABDEY c.vecviiieiireeinriirien e e sreesesssreseeseeranenas
Chief Executive Officer of San Francisco 415 Corporation

Steven E. Karol. ...
President of HMK Enterprises, Inc.

Dr. Herbert Cordt ..o e cerie e e ssssnn e enes
Managing Director of Cordt & Partner

Raymond J. Oglethorpe.....ccocververrerrisisiereereserinsse e
President of America Online, Inc.

Age

45

41

67

55

47

55

57

Director Since

1989

1998

1998

1994

1997

2000

2000

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote “FOR” the nominees named above.

Unless otherwise specified in the enclosed proxy, the persons named in the enclosed proxy intend to
vote the shares of common stock represented by each properly executed proxy “FOR” each of the nominees

named above,




Information Regarding Directors

The principal occupation and business experience of each director, none of whom holds a directorship
in any other company, is set forth below:

Mark W. Blodgett purchased a majority of the shares of the common stock of the Company in 1989
and since then he has maintained overall responsibility for daily operations and strategic planning. Prior to
joining the Company in 1989, Mr. Blodgett worked for a private merchant bank (1988-1989); was a corporate
vice president at Drexel Burnham Lambert, Inc. in New York (1980-1988); and was a merger and acquisition
associate for European American Bank in New York (1979-1980). Mr. Blodgett holds an M.A. Honors from
the University of St. Andrews, Scotland. Mr. Blodgett is actively involved in the Young Presidents
Organization. Mark W. Blodgett is the son of Lawrence W. Blodgett, a Director of the Company, and has
been a Director of the Company since 1989.

Alain Beauregard is President and Chief Technology Officer of the Company. Mr. Beauregard was
President of the Company’s subsidiary, Lasiris Inc. (now StockerYale Canada), a Canadian manufacturer of
industrial lasers for the machine vision and industrial inspection industries, prior to becoming President of the
Company on February 1, 2000. Mr. Beauregard holds a B.S. degree in physics from the Universite de
Montreal and a Masters degree in physics from Lavall University, Quebec City. Mr. Beauregard co-founded
Lasiris in 1985 and became its President in 1987. Mr. Beauregard has been a Director since 1998.

Lawrence W. Blodgett was the Vice President of Operations for The Andrew Jergens Company prior
to becoming a consultant in improving processes and practices in factory performance, engineering solutions
and systems implementation for North American & Western European companies. Before The Andrew Jergens
Company, Mr. Blodgett served as a Vice President of Manufacturing for Chesebrough-Pond in their
Greenwich, Connecticut facilities. Lawrence W. Blodgett is the father of Mark W. Blodgett. Mr. Blodgett has
been a Director of the Company since 1998.

Clifford L. Abbey is the Chief Executive Officer and principal shareholder of San Francisco 415
Corporation, a manufacturer and distributor of designer jeans. Mr. Abbey has an established reputation as a
successful entrepreneur, having founded, operated and ultimately sold a number of small and middle-market
businesses. Mr. Abbey has been a Director of the Company since 1994.

Steven E. Karol is President and Chief Executive Officer of HMK Enterprises, Inc., a diversified
manufacturing group that includes a steel mini-mill/integrated mill. Mr. Karol received his Bachelor of Science
degree at Tufts University, and he is a graduate of the President’s Program on Leadership (PPL) at the Harvard
University Graduate School of Business Administration. Mr. Karol has been a Director of the Company since
1997.

Dr. Herbert Cordt is managing director of Cordt & Partner, International Business Consultants, based
in Vienna, Austria. He also consults for major Austrian and international companies and represents Salomon
Smith Bamey in Austria. Dr. Cordt was formerly Vice-Governor of Osterreichische Postsparkasse (Postal
Savings Bank) and a member of the managing board of Landerbank, now Bank Austria. Dr. Cordt holds a
doctorate in law from the University of Vienna and a master’s degree (MSFS) from Georgetown University
where he majored in international economics. Dr. Cordt is also an alumnus of the Diplomatic Academy of
Vienna and has served on numerous corporate boards in Europe. Dr. Cordt has been a Director of the
Company since March 2000,



Raymond J. Oglethorpe is President of America Online, Inc. and serves on the Merrill Lynch Direct
Markets External Advisory Board and Hewlett Packard Global Advisory Board. Prior to joining America
Online in 1994, Mr. Oglethorpe directed Redgate Communications Corporation’s (a subsidiary of America
Online) domestic and international sales, marketing, and client service organization. Mr. Oglethorpe received
his Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Arizona and his MBA from George Washington
University. Mr. Oglethorpe has been a Director since July 2000.

Board of Directors and its Committees

Board of Directors. The Company was managed in 2001 by a seven member Board of Directors.
The Board met in person or by telephone on four occasions during fiscal 2001. Each of the Directors attended
at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and of meetings of the committees of
the Board of Directors of which he was a member that occurred during the time that such individual was a
Director.

Audit Commiztee. The Board has established an Audit Committee consisting of Steven E. Karol, who
serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee, Clifford L. Abbey and Dr. Herbert Cordt. The Board of Directors
has determined that the members of the Audit Committee are “independent” under the rules of the Nasdag
Stock Market. The Audit Committee meets with the Company’s independent auditors to review the adequacy
of the Company’s internal control systems and financial reporting procedures; reviews the general scope of the
Company’s annual audit and the fees charged by the independent auditors; and performs such other functions
as may be required by any stock exchange or over-the-counter market upon which the Company’s securities
may be listed or quoted. The Audit Committee met four times during fiscal 2001 and met once in 2002 to
discuss the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Compensation Committee. The Company’s Board of Directors has established a Compensation
Committee to determine the compensation of the Company’s executive officers and to grant options and stock
awards under the Company’s stock option and incentive plans. The Compensation Committee, which consisted
of Raymond J. Cglethorpe and Clifford L. Abbey, met three times during fiscal 2001.

The Board of Directors does not have a standing nominating committee or a committee performing
such functions. The full Board of Directors performs the function of such a committee.




Audit Committee Report
Report of the Audit Committee
To the Board of Directors of StockerYale, Inc.:

We have reviewed and discussed with management the Company’s audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31 2001. We have discussed with the Company’s
independent auditors, Arthur Andersen LLP, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61. We have received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from the independent
auditors required by Independence Standard No. 1, as may be modified or amended, and have discussed with
the auditors their independence.

The Audit Committee acts pursuant to the Audit Committee Charter. During fiscal 2001, the Audit
Committee adopted a formal Committee Charter, which sets forth responsibilities of the Committee. This
Charter was reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. The Committee reviews this Charter on an
annual basis to assess its adequacy. Each of the members of the Audit Committee qualifies and an
“independent” Director under the current listing standards of the Nasdaq stock market.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, we recommend to the Board of Directors that
the consolidated financial statements referred to above be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Audit Committee
Steven E. Karol

Clifford L. Abbey
Dr. Herbert Cordt




Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The following report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Compensation
Committee") describes the compensation policies applicable to our executive officers, including the Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Blodgett, with respect to compensation for 2001.

Compensation Philosophy

The Compensation Committee's philosophy in setting compensation policies for executive officers is
to maximize stockholder value over time. The Compensation Committee establishes compensation policies
that apply to the executive officers, including Mr. Blodgett, and evaluates the performance of these officers.
The Compensation Committee strongly believes that executive compensation should be directly linked to
continucus improvements in corporate performance, including: increases in revenues, profits, and stockholder
value.

In this regard, the Compensation Committee has adopted the following guidelines for compensation decisions:

o Provide a competitive total compensation package that enables the Company to attract and
retain key executive talent.

o Align pay programs with the Company’s annual and long-term business strategies and
objectives.

o Provide variable compensation opportunities that are directly linked to the Company’s
performance and that link executive reward to stockholder return.

The Compensation Committee focuses primarily on the following two components in forming the total
compensation package for the Company’s executive officers:

o  Base Salary

o Long-Term Incentives

Base Salary

The Compensation Committee believes that Mr. Blodgett’s compensation is competitive within the
industry. For the Company’s other executive officers, Mr. Blodgett, in consultation with the committee, has
established base salary ranges that it believes are competitive in the industry. Base salary is targeted at the
competitive median for competitors in technology companies located in the Northeast United States. For the
purpose of establishing these levels, the Company compares itself to a self-selected group of technology
companies that compete in the Company’s primary line of business, i.e. manufacturer of phase masks,
specialty optical fiber, and advanced illumination products. There are currently 18 companies in this
comparison group, which is subject to occasional change as the Company or it competitors change their focus,
merge or are acquired, or as new competitors emerge.

The Compensation Committee believes that Mr. Blodgett's compensation is competitive within the
industry. For the Company’s other executive officers, Mr. Blodgett, in consultation with the committee, has
established base salary ranges that the Company believes are competitive in the industry, linking a portion of
these executives' total compensation to annual bonuses.



Long-Term Incentives

The principal form of long-term incentive compensation is the grant of stock options. The
Compensation Committee is responsible for determining the individuals to whom grants should be made, the
timing of grants, and the number of shares subject to each option. Other than stock options, the Compensation
Committee made no other long-term performance awards during the last fiscal year. Stock option awards are
granted based on individual and/or corporate performance as determined subjectively by the Compensation
Committee. The Compensation Committee considers grants of options to executive officers during each fiscal
year.

Stock options provide the Company’s executive officers with the opportunity to share in the
appreciation of the value of the stock. The Compensation Committee believes that stock options directly
motivate an executive to maximize long-term stockholder value. The option vesting periods encourage key
employees to continue their employment with the Company.

All options to executive officers to date have been granted at the fair market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of the grant. The Compensation Committee considers the grant of each option
subjectively, considering factors such as the individual performance of executive officers and competitive
compensation packages in the industry. Certain executive officers received option grants in 2001 as disclosed
in this proxy statement.

Internal Revenue Code Section 162 (m)

The Compensation Committee has determined that it is unlikely that the Company would pay any
material amounts in fiscal 2002 that would result in the loss of a Federal income tax deduction under Section
162 (m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and accordingly, has not recommended that any
special actions be taken or that any plans or programs be revised at this time in light of such tax law provision.

Summary

The Compensation Committee believes that the Company’s executive compensation philosophy of
paying the Company’s executive officers by means of competitive base salaries, bonus, and long-term
incentives, as described in this report, serves the interests of the Company and its stockholders.

Compensation Committee

Raymond J. Oglethorpe
Clifford L. Abbey

Compensation of Directors

Under the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, each Director who is not an officer or employee of
the Company (an “Independent Director”) will receive an annual stock option grant to purchase 4,000 shares of
common stock, beginning with the annual meeting following such Director’s initial election to the Board.
Unless earlier terminated, all options granted to Independent Directors under the 2000 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan vest in full on the second anniversary of the grant of such options.




Executive Cfficers

The names and ages of all current executive officers of the Company and their principal occupation
and business experience during the last five years are as set forth below.

Name Age Position

Mark W, Blodgett (1) 45 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Alain Beauregard (1) 41  President, Chief Technology Officer and Director

Francis J. O’Brien 54  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

George A. Fryburg 50  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer

(1) For descriptions of business experience, please refer to “Information Regarding Directors”.

Francis J. O’Brien joined StockerYale as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Cfficer in
October 2001 and is responsible for all aspects of financial management, including accounting and treasury
functions and corporate compliance resources. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. O’Brien served as Director
of Finance and Business Development for Analogic Corporation. Previously, he was the Corporate Vice
President of Finance and Administration for Addison Wesley Longman, directing the finance, accounting,
information technology and administrative functions. Mr. O’Brien eamed his MBA from Suffolk University
and his B.A. from the University of Massachusetts. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

George A. Fryburg is Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Otficer, responsible for sales,
marketing, manufacturing, procurement, fulfillment, and distribution. Mr. Fryburg has twenty years of
manufacturing experience. He previously held plant manager and operations manager positions with Norton
Company (1986-1997) and engineering and manufacturing management positions with GTE Sylvania
(1977-1986). Mr. Fryburg holds a B.S. degree in physics from the College of Wooster, an M.S. in Ceramics
and Material Science from Case Western Reserve University and an MBA from New Hampshire College. Mr.
Fryburg joined the Company in *May of 1997.




Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors
Summary Compensation Information

The table below sets forth summary compensation information for the last three completed fiscal years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, with respect to the Chief Executive Officer and the other four most
highly compensated executive officers as well as one executive officer who was no longer serving as an
executive officer at the end of the 2001 fiscal year (the “Named Executive Officers”).

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensaticn
Securities All

. Underlying Cther
Name and Position Year Salary Bonus Total Options (1) Compensation
Mark W. Blodgett 2001 $ 400,000 $ - $ 400,000 670,000 $  2,625(7)
Chairman and Chief 2000 $ 381,456 §$ - $ 381,456 360,000 $  2295(D)
Executive Officer 1999 $ 201,073 ¢ - $ 201,073 320,000 (2) $  1,350(7)
Alain Beauregard 2001 $ 205,373 $ 9,615 $ 214,988 190,000 $ -
President, Chief Technology 2000 $ 177,808 $ - $ 177,808 76,000 3 --
Officer and Director 1999 $ 88470 $ 15390 $ 103,860 36,000 $ --
Paul J. Jortberg (3) 2001 $ 125000 $ 37,500 $ 162,500 90,000 $ 1,307(7)
Senior Vice President - 2000 $ 28,846 $ - $ 28,846 48,000 $ -
Sales and Marketing
Optical Components
George A. Fryburg 2001 $ 161,473 % - $ 161,473 168,800 § 2,503(7)
Executive Vice President and 2000 $ 142,734  § - $ 142,734 84,800 $ 2,551 (7)
Chief Operating Officer 1999 $ 108,127 § 500 $ 108,627 40,800 (4) $ 1,853(7)
Francis J. O’Brien (5) 2001 § 24616 $ - $ 24616 75,000 $ -
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Gary Godin (6) 2001 $ 137,500 % - $ 137,500 20,000 $ 2341 (7)
Executive Vice President and 2000 $§ 137,500 $ - $ 137,500 100,000 $ 2,275(7)
Chief Financial Officer 1999 $ 98,077 $ 12,500 $ 110,577 80,000 h) 613 (7)

)] All amounts shown are adjusted for the two-for-one stock split on July 31, 2000.
2) On December 11, 1999, the Company terminated options granting Mr. Blodgett the right to purchase (i) 42,534 shares

of the. Company’s common stock, originally granted on May 11, 1994 at an exercise price of $7.25 per share, (ii)
20,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, originally granted on April 1, 1996 at an exercise price of $6.00 per
share, (iii) 20,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, originally granted on April 1, 1997 at an exercise price of
$5.38 per share and (iv) 35,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, originally granted on May 5, 1998 at an
exercise price of $3.56 per share.

3) Mr. Jortberg became an employee of the Company on October 2, 2000.

©)) On December 11, 1999, the Company terminated options granting Mr. Fryburg the right to (i) 5,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, originally granted on May 19, 1997 at an exercise price of $5.25 per share and (ii) 8,000
shares of the Company’s common stock, originally granted on May 5, 1998 at an exercise price of $3.56 per share.

S Mr. O’Brien became an employee of the Company on October 29, 2001.
(6) Mr. Godin ceased to be an executive officer as of October 29, 2001 and left the Company as of March 31, 2002.
(7) Amounts reported represent Company contributions to a defined contribution plan.
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Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

The table below sets forth grants of options to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to the 1996
and 2000 Stock Option Plans made during the last completed fiscal year to the Named Executive Officers. The
table also shows the value of the options at the end of the option terms assuming the price of the Company’s
Common Stock appreciates annually by 5% and 10%, respectively. The options will only have value if they are
exercised, and that value will depend entirely on the share price on the exercise date. Potential realizable
values are based on assumed compound annual appreciation rates specified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and are not intended to forecast possible future appreciation, if any, of the price of the Common
Stock. There is no assurance that the price of the Common Stock will appreciate at the rates shown in the table.
If the price of the Common Stock appreciates, the value of the Common Stock held by all stockholders will
increase. A total of 1,273,010 options to purchase Common Stock were granted to the Company’s employees
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Potential Realizable

Number of Percent of Value at Assumed

Securities Total Options Annual Rates of Stock

Underlying Granted to Exercise Price Appreciation for

Options Employees in or Base Expiration Option Term

Name Granted Fiscal Year Price Date 5% 10%
Mark W. Blodgett 310,000 24.4% $ 11.75 4/2/2011 $ 2,290,749 $ 5,805,207
Alain Beauregard 150,000 11.8% $11.75 4/2/2011 $ 1,108,427 52,808,971
Francis J. O’Brien 75,000 5.9% $ 6.60 10/29/2011 $ 311,303 $ 788,903
George A. Fryburg 100,000 7.9% $ 11.75 4/2/2011 $ 738951 $ 1,872,647
Paul J. Jortberg 30,000 2.4% $ 1175 4/2/2011 $ 221,685 $ 561,794
Gary Godin - - $ - - $ - $ -

Option Exercises and Year-End Option Values

The table below sets forth the number of unexercised options held at December 31, 2001 and the value
of the unexercised in-the-money options held as of such date for each of the Named Executive Officers.

Number of
Securities
Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Shares Options at In-The-Money Options at
Acquired Value Fiscal Year-End Fiscal Year-End (1)
Name On Exercise (#) Realized ($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Mark. W. Blodgett - - 320,000 350,000 $ 3,290,840 § 292,352
Alain Beauregard 36,000 $ 464,310 - 190,000 - § 292,348
Francis J. O’Brien - - - 75,000 - $ 336,750
Gary B. Godin (2) 80,000 $ 784,320 - 20,000 - $ 146,174
George A. Fryburg 16,000 $ 194,000 40,800 128,000 § 418,615 $ 204,644
Paul J. Jortberg - - 15,000 75,000 - -
) These values have been calculated based upon the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock reported on the
Nasdaq National Market on December 31, 2001.
) Mr. Godin ceased to be an executive officer as of October 29, 2001 and left the Company as of March 31, 2002.
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Contracts With Executive Officers

The Company has no plan or arrangement with respect to the compensation of its executive officers
that would be payable upon the resignation, retirement or any other termination of any executive officer’s
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or in connection with a change of control of the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company or a change in the executive officer’s responsibilities following a change in
control, other than as described below. Under the 1996 Stock Cption Plan, in the event of a change of control,
as defined in that plan, the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may provide for substitution or adjustments of
outstanding options granted under that plan, or may terminate all unexercised options granted under that plan
with or without payment of cash consideration. In addition, certain options granted to outside Directors of the
Company vest in full upon such a change of control. Under the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, upon a
sale event, as defined in that plan, all options not previously exercisable become fully exercisable as of the
effective time of the sale event.

Alain Beauregard and the Company are party to an employment agreement dated May 13, 1998
providing for the employment of Mr. Beauregard as President and Chief Executive Officer of StockerYale
Canada (formerly Lasiris, Inc.) The initial term of the agreement is three years, with automatic one-year
extensions thereafter. If the Company elects not to renew the agreement at any time, Mr. Beauregard will
become entitled to receive a lump-sum payment equal to his annual salary then in effect. While employed by
StockerYale Canada, Mr. Beauregard is entitled to a salary, an annual bonus, all regular benefits provided to
employees of StockerYale Canada, and certain other benefits set forth in the agreement. If Mr. Beauregard is
terminated without cause at any time, he will become entitled to a lump-sum severance payment equal to the
greater of (a) his remaining salary under the term of the agreement and (b) his annualized salary in effect at the
time of termination. Also upon such termination without cause, Mr. Beauregard is entitled to receive all regular
medical and dental benefits then in effect for a period of one year following termination. Mr. Beauregard has
also agreed to certain confidentiality and non-competition and non-solicitation provisions, which apply during
the term of his employment and for a minimum of one year thereafter.

Certain Relatienships and Related Transactions

Mark W. Blodgett, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is the son of Lawrence W. Blodgett, a Director of the Company.
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Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The graph set forth below presents the cumulative, five year stockholder return for each of the
Company’s common stock, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and an index of peer group companies selected
by the Company (the “Peer Group”). The Peer Group consists of the following four publicly traded companies
in the specialty optical fiber and component industry: Lightpath Technologies Incorporated; New Focus
Incorporated; Cplink Communications and Optical Communication Products Incorporated. The graph assumes
an investment of $100 on December 31, 1996 in each of the Company’s common stock, the Standard & Poor’s
500 Index and the Peer Group, and assumes reinvestment of all dividends. The graph is market capitalization
weighted. The historical information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

$1,000
$900 —O— STOCKERYALE, INC.
5800 —fA— S&P 500
—O— PEER GROUP
$700
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12/31/1996 12/31/1997 12/31/1998 12/31/1999 12/31/2000 12/31/2001
12/31/1996(12/31/1997|12/31/1998( 12/31/1999 | 12/31/2000 | 12/31/2001
StockerYale, Inc. $100.00 $98.95 $19.79 $21.88 $412.49 $369.66
S&P 500 Index $100.00 | $133.36 | $171.47 $207.56 $188.66 $166.24
Peer Group Companies $100.00 | $139.39 | $109.09 $453.03 $300.83 $40.17

Compliance with 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”) requires
the Company’s executive officers and directors, and persons who are beneficial owners of more than 10% of a
registered class of the Company’s equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Officers, directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners are
required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. To the
Company’s knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company, and
written representations that no other reports were required, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to
its executive officers, directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners were satisfied, with the exception of
Alain Beauregard, who did not file a timely report on Form 4 to report the exercise of a stock option in 2001,
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Independent Public Accountants

Arthur Andersen was retained as the Company’s principal accountant for fiscal year 2001. As of the
date of this proxy statement, the Company has not formally selected an independent accountant for 2002. The
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors continues to monitor developments at Arthur Andersen LLP in
light of recent business and legal developments affecting the firm. The Audit Committee will make a
recommendation to the Board after further evaluation, which may include evaluating proposals from other
accounting firms. Representatives of Arthur Andersen LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting
and will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

Audit Fees

The Company estimates that the aggregate fees billed by its independent auditors for professional
services rendered in connection with (i) the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements set forth in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, and (ii) the review of the
Company’s quarterly financial statements set forth in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB for
the quarters ended March 31, 2001, June 30, 2001 and September 30, 2001, were approximately $203,000.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees
Arthur Andersen LLP provided no professional services of this nature to the Company in fiscal 2001.
All Other Fees

The Company estimates that the aggregate fees for all other services rendered by its independent
auditors for the Company’s most recent fiscal year equal approximately $95,000. These fees include work
performed by the independent auditors with respect to tax compliance and advisory services, and financial
accounting advisory services.

The Audit Committee has advised the Company that it has determined that the non-audit services
rendered by the Company’s independent auditors during the Company’s most recent fiscal year are compatible
with maintaining the independence of such auditors.

Item 2—Other Matters

Management does not know of any other matters to come before the Meeting other than as set forth in
the Notice of Special Meeting in Lieu of an Annual Meeting of Stockholders and this proxy statement. If other
matters are presented, proxies will be voted in accordance with the best judgment of the proxy holder.

Stockholder Propsosals for 2003 Annual Meeting

For a proposal of a stockholder (including Director nominations) submitted pursuant to Exchange Act
Rule 14a-8 to be included in the Company’s proxy statement and proxy for the Company’s 2003 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, it must be received at the principal offices of the Company on or before December
19, 2002. Such a proposal must also comply with the requirements as to form and substance established by the
SEC for such a proposal to be included in the proxy statement. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will
confer discretionary voting authority with respect to stockholder proposals, other than proposals to be
considered for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement described above, that the Company receives at its
principal offices after December 19, 2002. These proxies will also confer discretionary voting authority with
respect to stockholder proposals, other than proposals to be considered for inclusion in the Company’s proxy
statement described above, that the Company receives on or before December 19, 2002, subject to SEC rules
governing the exercise of this authority.
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Expense of Solicitation

The Company will bear the expense of this solicitation. It is expected that the solicitation will be made
primarily by mail, but regular employees or representatives of the Company (none of whom shall receive any
extra compensation for their activities) may also solicit proxies by telephone, facsimile, or other form of
electronic communication and in person and arrange for intermediaries to send this proxy statement and proxy
card to their principals at the expense of the Company.

Directors’ Approval

The contents of this proxy statement have been approved and its mailing has been authorized by the
Directors of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Francis J. O’Brien, Clerk

April 15, 2002
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